
San Mateo County HCH/FH Program Co-Applicant Board Agenda

Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities.  Individuals who need special assistance or a disability-related modification or 
accommodation (including auxiliary aids or services) to participate in this meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request an alternate 
format for the agenda, meeting notice, or other documents that may be distributed at the meeting, should contact the HCH/FH Community 
Program Coordinator at least five working days before the meeting at rnash@smcgov.org in order to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting and the materials related to it.  The HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board meeting documents are posted at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting and are accessible online at:  http://www.smchealth.org/smmc-hfhfh-board

HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS/FARMWORKER HEALTH PROGRAM (HCH/FH)

  Co-Applicant Board Meeting Agenda

500 County Center, Redwood City, CA 94063 (Manzanita Hall)

April 10th, 2025, 10:00am - 12:00pm
This meeting of The Health Care for The Homeless/Farmworker Health board will be held in-person at

500 County Center, Redwood City, CA 94063 (Manzanita Hall)
Remote participation in this meeting will not be available. To observe or participate in the meeting please attend in-person at above location.
*Written public comments may be emailed to rnash@smcgov.org and such written comments should indicate the specific agenda item on which you 
are commenting.

*Please see instructions for written and spoken public comments at the end of this agenda.

A. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL Victoria Sanchez De Alba 10:00am

B. PUBLIC COMMENT
Persons wishing to address on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is limited to three minutes 
and the total time allocated to Public Comment is fifteen minutes. If there are more than five individuals wishing to 
speak during Public Comment, the Chairperson may choose to draw only five speaker cards from those submitted and 
defer the rest of the speakers to a second Public Comment at the end of the Board meeting. In response to comments 
on a non-agenda item, the Board may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as allowed by the Brown 
Act (Government Code Section 54954.2) However, the Boards general policy is to refer items to staff for comprehensive 
action or report. 

C. ACTION TO SET THE AGENDA & CONSENT 
AGENDA

Victoria Sanchez De Alba 10:10am

1. Approve meeting minutes from:
a. March 13th Board Meeting 

Tab 1

2. Budget and Finance Report Tab 2
3. HCH/FH Director’s Report Tab 3
4. Quality Improvement/Quality Assurance

Update
Tab 4

D. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Communications and Announcements are brief items from members of the Board regarding upcoming events in the 
community and correspondence that they have received. They are informational in nature and no action will be taken 
on these items at this meeting. A total of five minutes is allotted to this item. If there are additional communications 
and announcements, the Chairperson may choose to defer them to a second agenda item added at the end of the 
Board Meeting.

Community updates Board Members 10:15am



San Mateo County HCH/FH Program Co-Applicant Board Agenda

Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities.  Individuals who need special assistance or a disability-related modification or 
accommodation (including auxiliary aids or services) to participate in this meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request an alternate 
format for the agenda, meeting notice, or other documents that may be distributed at the meeting, should contact the HCH/FH Community 
Program Coordinator at least five working days before the meeting at rnash@smcgov.org in order to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting and the materials related to it.  The HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board meeting documents are posted at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting and are accessible online at:  http://www.smchealth.org/smmc-hfhfh-board

E. GUEST SPEAKER

Jei Africa, Director of Behavioral Health and Recovery Services                                                                                              10:30am     

F. BUSINESS AGENDA

Approving HCHFH Grants Management Policy: 
Reviewing and Approving the Updated SMMC 

Drawdown Procedure

Jim Beaumont 11:05am

G. REPORTING & DISCUSSION AGENDA

San Mateo County Single Audit Report
Jim Beaumont 11:20am

Discussion of San Mateo County Farmworker Housing 
Compliance Taskforce Report - Discussion

Janet Schmidt 
11:30am

Federal Updates and Impacts on HCH/FH Program Jim Beaumont 11:45am

*Instructions for Public Comment During Meeting
Members of the public may address the Members of the HCH/FH board as follows:

Written public comments may be emailed in advance of the meeting. Please read the following instructions carefully:
1. Your written comment should be emailed to rnash@smcgov.org.
2. Your email should include the specific agenda item on which you are commenting or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda or is on the consent agenda.
3. Members of the public are limited to one comment per agenda item.
4. The length of the emailed comment should be commensurate with the two minutes customarily allowed for verbal comments, which is approximately 250-300 words.
5. If your emailed comment is received by 5:00 p.m. on the day before the meeting, it will be provided to the Members of the HCH/FH board and made publicly available on the agenda 
website under the specific item to which your comment pertains. If emailed comments are received after 5:00p.m. on the day before the meeting, HCH/FH board will make every effort to 
either (i) provide such emailed comments to the HCH/FH board and make such emails publicly available on the agenda website prior to the meeting, or (ii) read such emails during the 
meeting. Whether such emailed comments are forwarded and posted, or are read during the meeting, they will still be included in the administrative record.

H. ADJOURNMENT 12:00pm

Future meeting:  May 8th, 2025
Time: 10:00am-12pm
Location: 620 Correas Street, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019



 

 

 

 

 

Tab 1  
Meeting Minutes 

 
 
 
 
 



 

1 
 

 
 

H
EA

LT
H

 C
A

R
E 

FO
R

 T
H

E 
H

O
M

EL
ES

S/
FA

R
M

W
O

R
K

ER
 H

EA
LT

H
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 (H
C

H
/F

H
) 

C
o-

A
pp

lic
an

t B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
M

in
ut

es
 

45
5 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
en

te
r, 

R
ed

w
oo

d 
C

ity
, C

A
 9

40
63

 (R
oo

m
 1

01
) 

M
ar

ch
 1

3t
h,

 2
02

5,
 1

0:
00

am
 - 

12
:0

0p
m

 
 

C
o-

A
pp

lic
an

t B
oa

rd
 M

em
be

rs
 

Pr
es

en
t  

  
C

ou
nt

y 
St

af
f P

re
se

nt
 

M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 
A

bs
en

t B
oa

rd
 M

em
be

rs
/S

ta
ff 

 
 

St
ev

e 
Kr

af
t 

 
Br

ia
n 

G
re

en
be

rg
 

 
Ja

ne
t S

ch
m

id
t 

 
R

ob
er

t A
nd

er
so

n 
 

 
Su

za
nn

e 
M

oo
re

 
 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 S
an

ch
ez

 D
e 

Al
ba

 
(C

ha
ir)

 
 

Ta
yi

sc
ha

 D
el

dr
id

ge
  

 
Fr

an
ci

ne
 D

ic
ks

on
-S

er
af

in
 

 
Ju

di
th

 G
ue

rre
ro

 
 

To
ny

 S
er

ra
no

  
 

St
ev

e 
C

ar
ey

 (V
ic

e-
C

ha
ir)

 
 

Ji
m

 B
ea

um
on

t (
Ex

 O
ffi

ci
o)

 

 
Al

ej
an

dr
a 

Al
va

ra
do

 
 

G
oz

el
 K

ul
ie

va
  

 
R

av
en

 N
as

h 
 

Fr
an

k 
Tr

in
h 

 
Jo

ce
ly

n 
Vi

da
le

s 
 

 
Am

an
da

 H
in

g 
H

er
na

nd
ez

 
 

An
es

sa
 F

ar
be

r 
 

M
ar

is
ol

 E
sc

al
er

a 
D

ur
an

i 
 

C
J 

Ku
nn

ap
pi

lly
 

 

 
C

ris
th

ia
n 

La
nd

av
er

de
, A

LA
S 

 
Jo

rg
e 

Sa
nc

he
z,

 A
LA

S 
 

M
ar

ic
el

a 
Za

va
la

, P
ue

nt
e 

 
O

ph
el

ie
 V

ic
o,

 P
ue

nt
e 

 
M

ar
tin

 V
er

a,
 In

te
rp

re
te

r 
 

M
an

ue
l D

el
 V

al
le

,  
In

te
rp

re
te

r 

 
G

ab
e 

G
ar

ci
a 

 

  
A

. 
C

al
l t

o 
or

de
r &

 ro
ll 

ca
ll 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 S
an

ch
ez

 D
e 

Al
ba

 c
al

le
d 

th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

to
 o

rd
er

 a
t 1

0:
01

 a
m

 a
nd

 d
id

 
a 

ro
ll 

ca
ll.

  
 

B
. 

Pu
bl

ic
 C

om
m

en
t 

 
 C

ris
th

ia
n 

La
nd

av
er

de
, A

LA
S 

C
ris

th
ia

n 
up

da
te

d 
th

e 
bo

ar
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

 S
m

ar
t W

at
ch

es
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 H

C
H

/F
H

’s
 

cl
in

ic
al

 c
oo

rd
in

at
or

, A
le

ja
nd

ra
, i

s 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tin
g 

w
ith

 A
LA

S 
on

. H
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

cl
ie

nt
s 

ar
e 

ve
ry

 e
xc

ite
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

ir 
sm

ar
t w

at
ch

es
’ a

bi
lit

y 
to

 tr
ac

k 
th

ei
r h

ea
lth

 m
et

ric
s 

an
d 

da
ily

 s
te

p 
co

un
t. 

 
 M

ar
is

ol
 E

sc
al

er
a 

D
ur

an
i, 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
 M

ue
lle

r’s
 O

ffi
ce

 
M

ar
is

ol
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

so
m

e 
up

da
te

s 
to

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
r 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

w
ith

 A
LA

S,
 P

ue
nt

e,
 a

nd
 C

oa
st

si
de

 H
op

e 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

is
 a

w
ar

en
es

s.
 S

he
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
pl

an
s 

to
 h

on
or

 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

Fa
rm

w
or

ke
r A

w
ar

en
es

s 
W

ee
k,

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 fo

r M
ar

ch
 2

3 
– 

29
.  

 
 

 



  M
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s.

  I
nd

iv
id

ua
ls 

w
ho

 n
ee

d 
sp

ec
ia

l a
ss

ist
an

ce
 o

r a
 d

isa
bi

lit
y-

re
la

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

or
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
(in

clu
di

ng
 a

ux
ilia

ry
 a

id
s 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g,

 o
r w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

w
ish

 to
 re

qu
es

t a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r t

he
 a

ge
nd

a,
 m

ee
tin

g 
no

tic
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g,
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
ac

t t
he

 H
CH

/F
H 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Co

or
di

na
to

r a
t l

ea
st

 fi
ve

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

at
 (6

50
) 5

73
-2

64
0 

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ak
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
to

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
re

la
te

d 
to

 it
.  

Th
e 

HC
H/

FH
 C

o-
Ap

pl
ica

nt
 B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

os
te

d 
at

 le
as

t 7
2 

ho
ur

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 o
nl

in
e 

at
:  

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
m

ch
ea

lth
.o

rg
/s

m
m

c-
hf

hf
h-

bo
ar

d 
 

C
. 

A
ct

io
n 

to
 s

et
 th

e 
ag

en
da

 
an

d 
co

ns
en

t a
ge

nd
a.

 
 

1.
 

Ap
pr

ov
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

m
in

ut
es

 fr
om

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
13

th
 2

02
5 

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
 

2.
 

Bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
or

t 
3.

 
H

C
H

/F
H

 D
ire

ct
or

’s
 R

ep
or

t 
4.

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t/Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
U

pd
at

e 
  

R
eq

ue
st

 to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
C

on
se

nt
 

A
ge

nd
a 

w
as

  
M

O
VE

D
 b

y 
Su

za
nn

e 
M

oo
re

 
an

d 
SE

C
O

N
D

ED
 b

y 
Ta

yi
sc

ha
 

D
el

dr
id

ge
 

 AP
PR

O
VE

D
 b

y 
al

l B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
 

pr
es

en
t. 

 
 

D
. 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

A
nn

ou
nc

em
en

ts
 

 

 Su
za

nn
e 

M
oo

re
, B

oa
rd

 M
em

be
r  

Su
za

nn
e 

fo
rm

al
ly

 a
nn

ou
nc

ed
 to

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
th

at
 s

he
 is

 a
 B

oa
rd

 m
em

be
r o

n 
Pa

ci
fic

a 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
en

te
r’s

 B
oa

rd
 n

ow
 a

s 
w

el
l. 

Sh
e 

is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 d

is
cl

os
in

g 
an

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

on
fli

ct
s 

of
 in

te
re

st
 if

 th
ey

 a
ris

e.
 S

he
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

st
at

is
tic

s 
on

 th
e 

m
os

t p
re

va
le

nt
 re

as
on

s 
te

na
nt

s 
ar

e 
ev

ic
te

d,
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

on
e 

be
in

g 
fa

ilu
re

 to
 p

ay
 

re
nt

/u
til

iti
es

. T
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
t e

xa
m

pl
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

te
na

nt
s 

be
in

g 
re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 a

 
th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 to
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 p

ay
 a

 u
til

ity
 b

ill 
w

or
th

 th
ou

sa
nd

s 
of

 d
ol

la
rs

. S
he

 
in

fo
rm

ed
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

th
at

 a
 re

ce
nt

 M
ea

su
re

 K
 re

po
rt 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 8

.5
 m

illi
on

 
do

lla
rs

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

fo
r r

en
ta

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

w
as

 n
ot

 d
is

pe
rs

ed
. S

an
 M

at
eo

 L
eg

al
 

ai
d 

re
po

rte
d 

th
at

 th
at

 fu
nd

in
g 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

pr
ev

en
te

d 
ev

ic
tio

ns
. S

he
 a

sk
ed

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
an

d 
pr

og
ra

m
 s

ta
ff 

if 
it 

w
er

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 a
tta

in
 a

 re
po

rt 
of

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
SM

C
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
go

 to
 e

vi
ct

io
n 

co
ur

t o
n 

a 
m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

 a
nd

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
co

ns
ul

t w
ith

 
ev

ic
tio

n 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

an
ot

he
r r

ep
or

t o
n 

ho
w

 M
ea

su
re

 K
 fu

nd
in

g 
is

 d
is

pe
rs

ed
 

to
 b

et
te

r u
nd

er
st

an
d 

w
hy

 th
is

 re
nt

al
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
w

as
 n

ot
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 S

M
C

 
re

ci
pi

en
ts

.  
 Ju

di
th

 c
om

m
en

te
d 

th
at

 C
oa

st
si

de
 H

op
e 

ha
s 

se
en

 a
 c

ou
pl

e 
of

 th
e 

si
m

ila
r 

in
st

an
ce

s 
w

he
re

 th
e 

in
ab

ilit
y 

to
 p

ay
 a

 s
ud

de
n,

 la
rg

e 
bi

ll 
is

 th
e 

ca
us

e 
fo

r t
en

an
ts

 
to

 b
e 

ev
ic

te
d.

 T
on

y 
st

at
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

hi
s 

w
or

k 
at

 S
t V

in
ce

nt
 d

e 
Pa

ul
, h

e 
ha

s 
no

tic
ed

 e
vi

ct
io

ns
 te

nd
 to

 o
cc

ur
 d

ue
 to

 a
 la

ck
 o

f s
up

po
rt 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 a

fte
r a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r f

am
ily

 a
tta

in
s 

ho
us

in
g,

 m
or

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

, l
ac

k 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l l
ite

ra
cy

 
su

pp
or

t. 
Fr

an
k 

qu
es

tio
ne

d 
w

he
th

er
 th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
es

ca
la

tio
n 

pa
th

w
ay

 fo
r t

he
se

 
is

su
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y’

s 
H

um
an

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ag

en
cy

. T
ay

is
ch

a 
co

nf
irm

ed
 th

at
 

in
 E

as
t P

al
o 

Al
to

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
cl

ie
nt

s 
th

at
 a

re
 a

t r
is

k 
fo

r e
vi

ct
io

n 
an

d 
be

lie
ve

s 
th

at
 

m
or

e 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

bu
dg

et
in

g 
an

d 
st

ro
ng

er
 fi

na
nc

ia
l l

ite
ra

cy
 m

ay
 d

ec
re

as
e 

ev
ic

tio
ns

. B
ria

n 
in

fo
rm

s 
th

at
 B

oa
rd

 th
at

 is
 e

vi
ct

io
n 

is
 in

ev
ita

bl
e,

 it
 b

en
ef

its
 th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r f

am
ily

 to
 m

ov
e 

ou
t p

rio
r t

o 
be

in
g 

ev
ic

te
d,

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

ev
ic

tio
n 

do
es

 
no

t b
ec

om
e 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 th
ei

r r
ec

or
d;

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
 n

ea
rly

 im
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 a
tta

in
 w

ith
 a

n 
ev

ic
tio

n 
on

 re
co

rd
. R

ob
er

t a
dd

ed
 th

at
 h

e 
ha

s 
he

ar
d 

in
 th

e 
pa

st
 th

at
 c

as
e 

 



  M
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s.

  I
nd

iv
id

ua
ls 

w
ho

 n
ee

d 
sp

ec
ia

l a
ss

ist
an

ce
 o

r a
 d

isa
bi

lit
y-

re
la

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

or
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
(in

clu
di

ng
 a

ux
ilia

ry
 a

id
s 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g,

 o
r w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

w
ish

 to
 re

qu
es

t a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r t

he
 a

ge
nd

a,
 m

ee
tin

g 
no

tic
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g,
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
ac

t t
he

 H
CH

/F
H 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Co

or
di

na
to

r a
t l

ea
st

 fi
ve

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

at
 (6

50
) 5

73
-2

64
0 

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ak
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
to

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
re

la
te

d 
to

 it
.  

Th
e 

HC
H/

FH
 C

o-
Ap

pl
ica

nt
 B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

os
te

d 
at

 le
as

t 7
2 

ho
ur

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 o
nl

in
e 

at
:  

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
m

ch
ea

lth
.o

rg
/s

m
m

c-
hf

hf
h-

bo
ar

d 
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
in

 A
us

tin
, T

ex
as

, d
o 

ge
t t

en
an

ts
 to

 m
ov

e 
ou

t p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

of
fic

ia
l 

ev
ic

tio
n 

fo
r t

ha
t s

am
e 

re
as

on
.  

 R
ob

er
t f

ur
th

er
 s

ha
re

d 
th

at
 w

hi
le

 m
an

y 
lo

ca
ls

 h
av

e 
at

ta
in

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 th
e 

pa
st

 
th

ro
ug

h 
H

ou
si

ng
 F

irs
t v

ou
ch

er
s,

 m
an

y 
w

er
e 

ev
ic

te
d 

du
e 

to
 v

io
la

tin
g 

le
as

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 in
ab

ilit
y 

to
 p

ay
 re

nt
. S

uz
an

ne
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 th
at

 m
an

y 
of

 th
os

e 
in

 P
ac

ifi
ca

 d
id

 n
ot

 s
ee

k 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fir
st

, b
ut

 ra
th

er
 s

ou
gh

t h
el

p 
fro

m
 th

ei
r 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 n

et
w

or
k.

 S
he

 fu
rth

er
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n 
re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

th
ird

-p
ar

ty
 

pa
ye

r c
om

pa
ny

 th
at

 p
re

se
nt

s 
th

es
e 

bi
lls

 to
 te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
To

ny
 c

on
fir

m
s 

th
at

 h
is

 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n 
ha

s 
se

en
 th

is
 s

am
e 

co
m

pa
ny

 b
ill 

th
ei

r c
lie

nt
s.

 T
hi

s 
co

m
pa

ny
 is

 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 fa

ci
ng

 la
w

su
its

 fo
r t

he
se

 in
ci

de
nt

s.
  

 Ji
m

 B
ea

um
on

t, 
D

ire
ct

or
  

Ji
m

 in
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
th

at
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
’s

 S
at

ur
da

y 
D

en
ta

l C
lin

ic
 in

 
H

al
f M

oo
n 

Ba
y 

an
d 

So
nr

is
as

 D
en

ta
l C

lin
ic

 in
 P

es
ca

de
ro

 a
re

 e
rro

ne
ou

sl
y 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
bi

lls
 fo

r t
he

 c
ar

e 
th

at
 th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

es
e 

cl
in

ic
s.

 H
e 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
to

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 p

ay
s 

fo
r e

ac
h 

da
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 in

 fu
ll 

so
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

bi
lls

 w
ha

ts
oe

ve
r. 

It 
is

 b
el

ie
ve

d 
th

at
 th

is
 m

ay
 b

e 
an

 
is

su
e 

re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
re

ce
nt

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
fro

m
 e

C
W

, t
he

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

he
al

th
 

re
co

rd
 s

ys
te

m
 S

an
 M

at
eo

 M
ed

ic
al

 C
en

te
r u

se
d,

 to
 E

PI
C

. H
e 

as
ke

d 
th

at
 A

LA
S 

an
d 

Pu
en

te
 in

fo
rm

 a
ffe

ct
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

no
t t

o 
pa

y 
th

e 
bi

ll.
 O

ph
el

ie
 (P

ue
nt

e)
 a

sk
ed

 if
 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 p

at
hw

ay
 to

 b
e 

re
im

bu
rs

ed
 fo

r t
ho

se
 th

at
 h

av
e 

al
re

ad
y 

pa
id

 th
e 

bi
ll.

 
Sh

e 
fu

rth
er

 e
xp

la
in

s 
th

at
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

ar
e 

an
xi

ou
s 

ab
ou

t f
in

al
 n

ot
ic

e 
ca

lls
 th

at
 th

ey
 

ha
ve

 re
ce

iv
ed

 a
nd

 w
an

t t
o 

av
oi

d 
th

ei
r b

ills
 g

oi
ng

 to
 c

ol
le

ct
io

ns
. S

he
 s

ta
te

d 
th

at
 

th
es

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

pa
tie

nt
s’

 w
illi

ng
ne

ss
 to

 
re

ce
iv

e 
ca

re
 a

t t
he

 d
en

ta
l c

lin
ic

s.
 J

im
 re

as
su

re
d 

th
at

 p
ro

gr
am

 s
ta

ff 
w

ill 
at

te
nd

 a
 

m
ee

tin
g 

la
te

r t
ha

t a
fte

rn
oo

n 
w

ith
 S

M
M

C
’s

 fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

bi
llin

g 
de

pa
rtm

en
t t

o 
re

so
lv

e 
th

e 
is

su
e.

 
 

E.
 

G
ue

st
 S

pe
ak

er
  

C
J 

Ku
nn

ap
pi

lly
, C

hi
ef

 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

O
ffi

ce
r –

 S
an

 
M

at
eo

 M
ed

ic
al

 C
en

te
r 

 

 C
J 

K
un

na
pp

ill
y,

 S
an

 M
at

eo
 M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r (
SM

M
C

) 
C

J 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

hi
m

se
lf 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

bo
ar

d 
th

at
 h

e 
ha

s 
w

or
ke

d 
at

 S
M

M
C

 a
s 

a 
ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

fo
r 2

3 
ye

ar
s 

an
d 

8 
ye

ar
s 

as
 th

e 
C

EO
. H

e 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

gr
at

itu
de

 fo
r 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d’
s 

w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

 fe
w

 S
M

M
C

 u
pd

at
es

. F
irs

t, 
as

 o
f l

as
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

4,
 E

PI
C

 is
 th

e 
EH

R
 s

ys
te

m
 th

at
 a

ll 
SM

M
C

 u
se

s.
 P

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
EP

IC
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 th
e 

EH
R

s 
w

er
e 

fra
gm

en
te

d 
an

d 
th

at
 le

d 
to

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 fo

r S
M

M
C

 d
iv

is
io

ns
 to

 s
ta

y 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

an
d 

fo
r p

at
ie

nt
s 

be
ca

us
e 

th
ei

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
w

as
 n

ot
 in

te
gr

at
ed

. N
ex

t, 
he

 u
pd

at
ed

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
on

 S
M

M
C

 
m

ai
n 

ca
m

pu
s 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 T
he

 re
as

on
 fo

r t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 to
 m

ee
t s

ei
sm

ic
 

co
de

 a
nd

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
. L

as
tly

, C
J 

in
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
th

at
 th

er
e 

w
ill 

be
 a

 la
rg

er
, 

 



  M
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s.

  I
nd

iv
id

ua
ls 

w
ho

 n
ee

d 
sp

ec
ia

l a
ss

ist
an

ce
 o

r a
 d

isa
bi

lit
y-

re
la

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

or
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
(in

clu
di

ng
 a

ux
ilia

ry
 a

id
s 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g,

 o
r w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

w
ish

 to
 re

qu
es

t a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r t

he
 a

ge
nd

a,
 m

ee
tin

g 
no

tic
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g,
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
ac

t t
he

 H
CH

/F
H 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Co

or
di

na
to

r a
t l

ea
st

 fi
ve

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

at
 (6

50
) 5

73
-2

64
0 

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ak
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
to

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
re

la
te

d 
to

 it
.  

Th
e 

HC
H/

FH
 C

o-
Ap

pl
ica

nt
 B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

os
te

d 
at

 le
as

t 7
2 

ho
ur

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 o
nl

in
e 

at
:  

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
m

ch
ea

lth
.o

rg
/s

m
m

c-
hf

hf
h-

bo
ar

d 
 

m
or

e 
m

od
er

n 
W

el
ln

es
s 

C
en

te
r t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r p
at

ie
nt

s 
in

 S
ou

th
 S

an
 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o.
 T

he
 W

el
ln

es
s 

C
en

te
r s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
la

te
 2

02
6/

ea
rly

 2
02

7.
 

H
e 

al
so

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
up

da
te

s 
on

 s
ta

ffi
ng

, m
or

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

, t
ha

t S
M

M
C

 h
as

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 lo

w
 v

ac
an

cy
 ra

te
s 

fo
r h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
re

la
te

d 
po

si
tio

ns
, s

uc
h 

as
 n

ur
se

s.
 

St
af

f a
re

 a
ls

o 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

im
m

ig
ra

nt
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ca
re

 o
pt

io
ns

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pa

tie
nt

s 
fe

el
 s

af
e 

w
he

n 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

ca
re

.  
 R

ob
er

t a
sk

ed
 if

 S
M

M
C

’s
 E

PI
C

 s
ys

te
m

 re
ce

iv
es

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 p

at
ie

nt
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 
ot

he
r h

ea
lth

 c
en

te
rs

 in
 S

an
 M

at
eo

 C
ou

nt
y.

 C
J 

co
nf

irm
s 

in
 s

ho
rt 

ye
s,

 b
ut

 th
at

 
th

at
 S

M
M

C
 a

cc
es

s 
is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 h

ow
 m

uc
h 

th
at

 o
th

er
 h

ea
lth

 c
en

te
r d

ec
id

es
 to

 
sh

ar
e.

 S
uz

an
ne

 a
sk

ed
 C

J 
if 

SM
M

C
 is

 o
pe

n 
to

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
re

d 
im

m
ig

ra
tio

n 
ca

rd
s 

fro
m

 F
ai

th
 in

 A
ct

io
n.

 C
J 

re
sp

on
ds

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y’

s 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f C

on
su

m
er

 A
ffa

irs
 

do
es

 d
is

tri
bu

te
 th

os
e 

ca
rd

s 
at

 a
ll 

SM
M

C
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

w
or

ks
 to

 a
lig

n 
w

ith
 th

em
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 S
M

M
C

’s
 p

at
ie

nt
 c

om
m

un
ity

. M
ar

is
ol

 c
hi

m
es

 in
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 
th

at
 th

e 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f C

on
su

m
er

 A
ffa

irs
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
oa

ct
iv

e 
in

 p
as

si
ng

 o
ut

 s
ev

er
al

 
th

ou
sa

nd
s 

of
 th

e 
re

d 
im

m
ig

ra
tio

n 
ca

rd
s,

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 c

re
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Im

m
ig

ra
tio

n 
Le

ga
l R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
en

te
r (

IL
R

C
). 

Br
ia

n 
as

ke
d 

C
J 

if 
Av

at
ar

, B
H

R
S’

s 
EH

R
 s

ys
te

m
 

w
ill 

be
 re

pl
ac

ed
 b

y 
EP

IC
. C

J 
co

nf
irm

ed
 th

at
 w

as
 tr

ue
.  

 Vi
ct

or
ia

 a
sk

ed
 C

J 
fo

r s
om

e 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f S
M

M
C

’s
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

if 
H

C
H

/F
H

’s
 

w
or

k 
al

ig
ns

 w
ith

 th
em

. H
e 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
er

e 
is

 tr
em

en
do

us
 a

lig
nm

en
t. 

H
e 

re
sp

on
de

d 
th

at
 w

ith
 E

PI
C

 n
ow

 fu
lly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 th
e 

m
ed

ic
al

 c
en

te
r w

ill 
sh

ift
 

th
ei

r f
oc

us
 o

n 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
ei

r p
at

ie
nt

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 

th
e 

m
ed

ic
al

 c
en

te
r’s

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
ni

ng
, t

hi
s 

su
m

m
er

 th
ei

r m
ai

n 
fo

cu
s 

w
ill 

be
 o

n 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

de
liv

er
y 

at
 C

oa
st

si
de

 C
lin

ic
 to

 le
ar

n 
m

or
e 

on
 h

ow
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 o
f c

ho
ic

e 
fo

r p
at

ie
nt

s.
 H

e 
el

ab
or

at
es

 th
at

 w
hi

le
 

SM
M

C
 w

as
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 o
f l

as
t r

es
or

t, 
th

at
 is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 

th
e 

ca
se

, a
nd

 th
at

 S
M

M
C

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
an

d 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 b
e 

op
en

 to
 e

ve
ry

on
e.

 
H

e 
em

ph
as

iz
ed

 th
at

 w
hi

le
 it

 is
 n

ot
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 d

es
ig

n 
a 

m
ed

ic
al

 c
en

te
r s

ys
te

m
 

fo
r e

ve
ry

on
e,

 S
M

M
C

’s
 g

oa
l i

s 
to

 d
es

ig
n 

a 
m

ed
ic

al
 c

en
te

r f
or

 th
os

e 
th

at
 o

th
er

 
he

al
th

 c
en

te
rs

 a
re

 n
ot

 o
pe

n 
fo

r; 
ba

se
d 

on
 w

ha
t t

he
ir 

pa
tie

nt
s 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
w

ha
t 

ot
he

r h
ea

lth
 c

en
te

rs
 d

o 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

.  
 Vi

ct
or

ia
 a

sk
ed

 if
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

th
at

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

H
C

H
/F

H
 p

ro
gr

am
 

co
ul

d 
be

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 to

 w
or

k 
m

or
e 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 S
M

M
C

? 
C

J 
ex

pl
ai

ne
d 

th
at

 th
e 

C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

pa
nd

em
ic

 w
as

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t d
is

ru
pt

er
 o

f t
he

 m
ed

ic
al

 c
en

te
r’s

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 e

ng
ag

e 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
th

at
 th

e 
m

ed
ic

al
 c

en
te

r h
ad

 b
ot

h 
in

te
rn

al
ly

 a
nd

 
ex

te
rn

al
ly

. H
e 

fu
rth

er
 e

la
bo

ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

rio
rit

iz
in

g 
th

e 
EP

IC
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

ni
n g

 o
ve

r t
he

 la
st

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
ha

s 
al

so
 h

ad
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
SM

M
C

’s
 



  M
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s.

  I
nd

iv
id

ua
ls 

w
ho

 n
ee

d 
sp

ec
ia

l a
ss

ist
an

ce
 o

r a
 d

isa
bi

lit
y-

re
la

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

or
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
(in

clu
di

ng
 a

ux
ilia

ry
 a

id
s 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g,

 o
r w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

w
ish

 to
 re

qu
es

t a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r t

he
 a

ge
nd

a,
 m

ee
tin

g 
no

tic
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g,
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
ac

t t
he

 H
CH

/F
H 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Co

or
di

na
to

r a
t l

ea
st

 fi
ve

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

at
 (6

50
) 5

73
-2

64
0 

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ak
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
to

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
re

la
te

d 
to

 it
.  

Th
e 

HC
H/

FH
 C

o-
Ap

pl
ica

nt
 B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

os
te

d 
at

 le
as

t 7
2 

ho
ur

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 o
nl

in
e 

at
:  

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
m

ch
ea

lth
.o

rg
/s

m
m

c-
hf

hf
h-

bo
ar

d 
 

ab
ilit

y 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s.
 H

e 
co

nc
lu

de
s 

th
at

 w
ith

 E
PI

C
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ed
ic

al
 c

en
te

r g
et

tin
g 

th
ei

r b
ea

rin
gs

 p
os

t C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

pa
nd

em
ic

, S
M

M
C

 
ha

s 
pr

oa
ct

iv
el

y 
re

vi
ve

d 
th

ei
r p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

in
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s 

to
 le

ar
n 

to
ge

th
er

. C
J 

co
m

m
en

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

w
or

k 
to

 o
cc

ur
 th

is
 S

um
m

er
 a

t C
oa

st
si

de
 C

lin
ic

 w
ill 

be
 a

 
gr

ea
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 H

C
H

/F
H

.  
 Vi

ct
or

ia
 in

qu
ire

d 
ab

ou
t S

M
M

C
’s

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 a
nd

 a
llo

ca
te

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 th

ro
ug

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

ta
ffi

ng
. C

J 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

gr
at

itu
de

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
 s

ta
ff’

s 
w

or
k 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
ed

 V
ic

to
ria

 th
at

 g
iv

en
 th

e 
un

ce
rta

in
ty

 o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

fo
r m

ed
ic

al
 c

ar
e,

 a
ll 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 to

 d
ire

ct
 p

at
ie

nt
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

an
yt

hi
ng

 th
at

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 

el
se

w
he

re
, t

ak
es

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
 p

at
ie

nt
 c

ar
e 

di
re

ct
ly

. H
e 

re
as

su
re

d 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

th
at

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

ot
he

r w
ay

s 
th

at
 S

M
M

C
 c

an
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
w

or
k 

fo
r t

he
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 th
at

 
he

 is
 o

pe
n 

to
 lo

ok
 fu

rth
er

 in
to

 th
es

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
av

en
ue

s.
  

 
F.

 
B

us
in

es
s 

A
ge

nd
a 

 
 

 N
o 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 A
ge

nd
a 

Ite
m

s.
  

 

 
G

. 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

&
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
A

ge
nd

a 
1.

 
In

iti
al

 D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 

H
ea

lth
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l S

ite
 V

is
it 

(H
R

SA
 O

SV
) G

ra
nt

 
C

on
di

tio
ns

 
2.

 
Sa

n 
M

at
eo

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fa
rm

w
or

ke
r H

ou
si

ng
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Ta
sk

fo
rc

e’
s 

An
nu

al
 R

ep
or

t 
3.

 
Bo

ar
d 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

4.
 

Fe
de

ra
l U

pd
at

es
 a

nd
 

Im
pa

ct
s 

on
 H

C
H

/F
H

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
 

 Ji
m

 B
ea

um
on

t, 
D

ire
ct

or
  

Ji
m

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

up
da

te
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
’s

 H
R

SA
 O

SV
 G

ra
nt

 
co

nd
iti

on
s;

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
11

 o
ut

 o
f 1

00
 o

r s
o 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 m
us

t 
ad

dr
es

s 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

90
-d

ay
 g

ra
nt

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 ti

m
e 

pe
rio

d.
 T

he
 d

ea
dl

in
e 

is
 J

un
e 

1,
 2

02
5.

 T
he

 m
os

t c
om

pl
ex

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 is
 a

 L
ab

or
 a

nd
 D

el
iv

er
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

 o
nc

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
SM

M
C

 a
nd

 S
ta

nf
or

d.
 W

ith
ou

t t
hi

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

in
 p

la
ce

, t
he

re
 is

 n
o 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

gu
ar

an
te

ed
 fo

r t
he

 p
at

ie
nt

, e
ve

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Sl

id
in

g 
Fe

e 
D

is
co

un
t P

ro
gr

am
 (S

FD
P)

. J
im

 in
fo

rm
s 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
th

at
, 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

’s
 le

ga
l c

ou
ns

el
, i

t m
ay

 b
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 c

on
vi

nc
e 

St
an

fo
rd

 to
 a

gr
ee

 to
 th

e 
ex

ac
t c

on
tra

ct
 th

at
 w

as
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

ef
or

e.
 H

e 
ha

s 
re

ac
he

d 
ou

t t
o 

Ta
yi

sc
ha

, w
ho

 is
 a

 p
ar

t o
f R

av
en

sw
oo

d,
 a

no
th

er
 F

ed
er

al
ly

 
Q

ua
lif

ie
d 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r (
FQ

H
C

), 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 s

en
d 

th
ei

r p
at

ie
nt

s 
th

at
 n

ee
d 

La
bo

r a
nd

 D
el

iv
er

y 
se

rv
ic

es
. A

ll 
ot

he
r c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
th

at
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
s 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 re

so
lv

e 
qu

ic
kl

y.
  

 Ji
m

 B
ea

um
on

t, 
D

ire
ct

or
 

Ji
m

 s
um

m
ar

iz
ed

 th
e 

ke
y 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 th

e 
Sa

n 
M

at
eo

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fa
rm

w
or

ke
r 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Ta
sk

fo
rc

e’
s 

An
nu

al
 R

ep
or

t. 
H

e 
ex

pl
ai

ns
 th

at
 w

hi
le

 th
e 

re
po

rt 
st

at
es

 th
at

 6
6%

 o
f f

ar
m

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 w

as
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 o
n 

al
l t

he
 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 3

4%
 w

as
n’

t. 
H

e 
lis

te
d 

so
m

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
th

at
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

as
 

 



  M
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s.

  I
nd

iv
id

ua
ls 

w
ho

 n
ee

d 
sp

ec
ia

l a
ss

ist
an

ce
 o

r a
 d

isa
bi

lit
y-

re
la

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

or
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
(in

clu
di

ng
 a

ux
ilia

ry
 a

id
s 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g,

 o
r w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

w
ish

 to
 re

qu
es

t a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r t

he
 a

ge
nd

a,
 m

ee
tin

g 
no

tic
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g,
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
ac

t t
he

 H
CH

/F
H 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Co

or
di

na
to

r a
t l

ea
st

 fi
ve

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

at
 (6

50
) 5

73
-2

64
0 

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ak
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
to

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
re

la
te

d 
to

 it
.  

Th
e 

HC
H/

FH
 C

o-
Ap

pl
ica

nt
 B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

os
te

d 
at

 le
as

t 7
2 

ho
ur

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 o
nl

in
e 

at
:  

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
m

ch
ea

lth
.o

rg
/s

m
m

c-
hf

hf
h-

bo
ar

d 
 

no
nc

om
pl

ia
nt

. R
ob

er
t c

la
rif

ie
d 

fo
r t

he
 B

oa
rd

 th
at

 w
hi

le
 th

is
 re

po
rt 

co
ve

rs
 a

re
as

 
th

at
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y,

 it
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 a

re
a 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
bu

t w
ith

in
 s

om
e 

ci
ty

 li
m

its
, l

ik
e 

H
al

f M
oo

n 
Ba

y.
 It

 is
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 th
at

 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

si
m

ila
r a

ss
es

sm
en

t a
t t

he
 c

ity
 le

ve
l f

or
 H

M
B.

 J
ud

ith
 a

gr
ee

s 
bu

t r
em

in
ds

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
th

at
 w

hi
le

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f H

M
B 

m
ay

 p
rio

rit
iz

e 
th

is
 is

su
e,

 it
 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 is
 a

llo
ca

tin
g 

th
ei

r r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s 
be

st
 th

ey
 c

an
. T

he
re

 is
 a

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 d

iff
er

en
t f

ar
m

s 
as

 th
ey

 re
la

te
 to

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

C
ity

 o
f H

M
B 

lim
its

. F
ra

nc
in

e 
no

tic
es

 th
at

 th
e 

re
po

rt’
s 

da
ta

 s
ke

w
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 q
ua

nt
ita

tiv
e 

da
ta

 
an

d 
th

at
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 a
ss

es
se

d 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 a
de

qu
at

el
y.

 R
ob

er
t e

xp
la

in
ed

 th
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

ed
 s

om
e 

re
si

st
an

ce
 fr

om
 fa

rm
 o

w
ne

rs
. S

uz
an

ne
 in

fo
rm

ed
 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
th

at
 a

 B
er

ke
le

y 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n,
 U

rb
an

 H
ab

ita
t, 

in
te

rv
ie

w
ed

  
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
 a

bo
ut

 th
ei

r e
xp

er
ie

nc
es

 a
nd

 w
ill 

be
 c

re
at

in
g 

po
lic

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 fe
w

 m
on

th
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

qu
al

ita
tiv

e 
da

ta
. 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 a
nd

 R
ob

er
t d

is
cu

ss
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 fa
rm

 th
at

 is
 n

ot
or

io
us

 fo
r p

oo
r l

iv
in

g 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

im
ila

r i
ns

ta
nc

es
. T

on
y 

in
qu

ire
s 

if 
a 

re
ce

nt
 IC

E 
ra

id
 w

as
 re

la
te

d 
to

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 w

or
k.

 B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
 c

on
fir

m
 n

o.
  

 Vi
ct

or
ia

 S
an

ch
ez

 D
e 

A
lb

a,
 B

oa
rd

 C
ha

ir 
 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

w
ith

 a
 B

oa
rd

 R
ec

ru
itm

en
t d

oc
um

en
t t

ha
t m

ay
 b

e 
he

lp
fu

l i
n 

re
cr

ui
tin

g 
ne

w
 m

em
be

rs
. R

ob
er

t a
pp

re
ci

at
ed

 th
e 

fo
rm

at
 a

nd
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
 a

sk
ed

 to
 a

do
pt

 th
at

 fo
r o

th
er

 re
cr

ui
tin

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
. V

ic
to

ria
 

re
m

in
de

d 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 th

e 
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t s
ub

co
m

m
itt

ee
 fo

rm
ed

 a
nd

 in
vi

te
d 

Bo
or

d 
m

em
be

rs
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e.

 J
an

et
 a

sk
ed

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
w

ith
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
in

 
re

ac
hi

ng
 o

ut
 to

 tw
o 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ho

 s
he

 b
el

ie
ve

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

gr
ea

t o
n 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d;
 

th
ei

r n
am

es
 a

re
 D

an
 F

re
em

an
 a

nd
 P

au
l N

ic
ke

ls
. S

he
 m

et
 th

em
 w

hi
le

 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
in

 a
 G

ra
nd

 J
ur

y 
ca

se
 in

 2
02

0.
 S

he
 in

fo
rm

s 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 
bo

th
 a

tto
rn

ey
s 

an
d 

bo
th

 re
tir

ed
. S

he
 p

ut
 a

n 
as

k 
to

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
to

 h
el

p 
he

r f
in

d 
co

nt
ac

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
sh

e 
w

ill 
re

ac
h 

ou
t. 

R
ob

er
t c

al
le

d 
ou

t t
o 

AL
AS

 a
nd

 
Pu

en
te

 a
tte

nd
ee

s 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

if 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

an
y 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 

lik
e 

to
 jo

in
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d.

 O
ph

el
ie

 ra
is

ed
 th

e 
co

nc
er

n 
th

at
 w

hi
le

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

 m
ay

 
be

 in
te

re
st

ed
, t

he
 B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
gs

 c
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 th
ei

r s
ch

ed
ul

es
. J

or
ge

 in
fo

rm
ed

 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
lre

ad
y 

so
m

e 
in

te
re

st
 fr

om
 th

ei
r f

ar
m

w
or

ke
r c

lie
nt

s.
  

Ta
yi

sc
ha

 a
sk

ed
 if

 it
 w

er
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 h

av
e 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

 o
r h

om
el

es
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
 v

irt
ua

lly
. U

lti
m

at
el

y,
 J

im
 s

ta
te

d 
th

at
 B

oa
rd

 m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

at
te

nd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 in

-p
er

so
n 

bu
t t

ha
t i

t m
ay

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 h

av
e 

no
n-

Bo
ar

d 
m

em
be

r f
ar

m
w

or
ke

r a
nd

 h
om

el
es

s 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 v
irt

ua
lly

. P
ro

gr
am

 
st

af
f w

as
 a

sk
ed

 to
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
if 

th
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 re

qu
ire

d 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
an

d 
if 

th
e 

pr
o g

ra
m

 c
an

 h
ol

d 
hy

br
id

 m
ee

tin
gs

. A
le

ja
nd

ra
 a

sk
ed

 J
im

 if
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 



  M
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s.

  I
nd

iv
id

ua
ls 

w
ho

 n
ee

d 
sp

ec
ia

l a
ss

ist
an

ce
 o

r a
 d

isa
bi

lit
y-

re
la

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

or
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
(in

clu
di

ng
 a

ux
ilia

ry
 a

id
s 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g,

 o
r w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

w
ish

 to
 re

qu
es

t a
n 

al
te

rn
at

e 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r t

he
 a

ge
nd

a,
 m

ee
tin

g 
no

tic
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g,
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
ac

t t
he

 H
CH

/F
H 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Co

or
di

na
to

r a
t l

ea
st

 fi
ve

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

at
 (6

50
) 5

73
-2

64
0 

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ak
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
to

 th
is 

m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
re

la
te

d 
to

 it
.  

Th
e 

HC
H/

FH
 C

o-
Ap

pl
ica

nt
 B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

os
te

d 
at

 le
as

t 7
2 

ho
ur

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 o
nl

in
e 

at
:  

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.s
m

ch
ea

lth
.o

rg
/s

m
m

c-
hf

hf
h-

bo
ar

d 
 

pu
bl

ic
 w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 p

re
se

nt
, c

an
 th

ey
 d

o 
so

 v
irt

ua
lly

. J
im

 s
ta

te
d 

th
at

 h
e 

w
ou

ld
 

ne
ed

 to
 v

er
ify

 if
 th

at
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e 
or

 n
ot

. M
ar

is
ol

 in
fo

rm
ed

 J
im

 th
at

 h
e 

ca
n 

al
w

ay
s 

re
ac

h 
ou

t t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 o
ffi

ce
 to

 g
iv

e 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

n 
m

ee
tin

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

 Ji
m

 B
ea

um
on

t, 
D

ire
ct

or
 

Ji
m

 in
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
th

at
 th

e 
de

ad
lin

e 
to

 d
ec

id
e 

on
 th

e 
le

ve
l f

ed
er

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
he

al
th

 c
en

te
r p

ro
gr

am
 is

 F
rid

ay
, M

ar
ch

 1
4.

 T
he

 fu
nd

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

 is
 o

nl
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
02

5,
 a

sk
ed

 fo
r a

t t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 
le

ve
l o

f f
un

di
ng

 a
nd

 is
 te

ch
ni

ca
lly

 a
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 th
e 

la
st

 fu
nd

in
g 

pe
rio

d.
 T

he
 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

is
 th

at
 th

er
e 

w
ill 

no
t b

e 
cu

ts
 to

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 le

ve
l o

f f
un

di
ng

. A
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 b
y 

th
e 

H
ou

se
 o

f R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

, a
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 $
88

0 
bi

llio
n 

fro
m

 M
ed

ic
ai

d/
M

ed
i-C

al
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
op

os
ed

. A
ny

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 M

ed
ic

ai
d/

M
ed

i-C
al

 w
ill 

im
pa

ct
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
’s

 p
at

ie
nt

s.
 

Fu
rth

er
m

or
e,

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 h
as

 re
ce

iv
ed

 m
ul

tip
le

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 H
R

SA
 

to
 re

m
ov

e 
la

ng
ua

ge
 re

la
te

d 
to

 D
iv

er
si

ty
, E

qu
ity

, a
nd

 In
cl

us
iv

ity
 (D

EI
) o

r S
ex

ua
l 

O
rie

nt
at

io
n 

an
d 

G
en

de
r I

de
nt

ity
 (S

O
G

I).
 F

ra
nc

in
e 

as
ke

d 
ab

ou
t t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
’s

 
fu

nd
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 it
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

im
pa

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s.

 J
im

 
ex

pl
ai

ne
d 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

’s
 fu

nd
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

co
nf

irm
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

’s
 

fu
nd

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ha

s 
no

t b
ee

n 
im

pa
ct

ed
 b

y 
cu

rre
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

.  
G

. A
dj

ou
rn

m
en

t 
 

Fu
tu

re
 m

ee
tin

g:
 

Th
ur

sd
ay

, A
pr

il 
10

th
, 2

02
5 

Ti
m

e:
 1

0a
m

 - 
12

pm
 

50
0 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
en

te
r C

O
B

 3
 (M

an
za

ni
ta

 H
al

l) 
R

ed
w

oo
d 

C
ity

, C
A

 9
40

63
 

 

Th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
as

 a
dj

ou
rn

ed
 a

t 1
1:

37
 

am
.  

 



1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Sa
n 

M
at

eo
 C

ou
nt

y

Fa
rm

w
or

ke
r H

ou
si

ng
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

Fi
na

lR
ep

or
t

D
at

e:
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

7,
 2

02
5

2

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

In
 th

e 
w

ak
e 

of
 th

e 
m

as
s 

sh
oo

tin
g

in
ci

de
nt

at
 tw

o 
fa

rm
s 

on
 th

e 
co

as
ts

id
e 

of
 S

an
 M

at
eo

 C
ou

nt
y

in
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

23
, t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
cr

ea
te

d 
th

e 
Fa

rm
w

or
ke

r H
ou

si
ng

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 c

om
pr

is
ed

 o
f i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
pe

rs
on

ne
l f

ro
m

 m
ul

tip
le

 
C

ou
nt

y 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
. T

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
ha

d 
tw

o 
go

al
s:

 (1
) p

ro
ac

tiv
el

y 
id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
lo

ca
te

 a
ll 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 o

n
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l 
an

d 
ra

nc
h 

la
nd

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

un
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 a

re
a,

 w
he

th
er

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 o

r i
lle

ga
lly

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

; a
nd

 (2
) i

ns
pe

ct
 s

uc
h 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

rs
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

un
its

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 m
in

im
um

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y
st

an
da

rd
s.

 T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 

th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
’s

 d
at

a 
co

lle
ct

io
n,

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
pr

oc
es

s,
 p

ub
lic

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t e

ffo
rt

s,
 a

nd
 k

ey
 le

ar
ni

ng
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 
qu

an
tit

y 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

er
-p

ro
vi

de
d 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 in

 th
e 

un
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 a

re
a 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y.
 

Ke
y 

Fi
nd

in
gs

: 

Th
ro

ug
h 

re
co

rd
s 

re
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

su
rv

ey
s,

 th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
id

en
tif

ie
d 

12
4 

ac
tiv

e 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 ra
nc

h 
op

er
at

io
ns

 in
 

un
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 S

an
 M

at
eo

 C
ou

nt
y.

 
Th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 1

24
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

, 5
6 

op
er

at
io

ns
 p

ro
vi

de
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

. 
Th

ro
ug

h 
si

te
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
ft

ho
se

 5
6 

op
er

at
io

ns
, t

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

14
5 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
by

an
 e

st
im

at
ed

 3
56

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

. 
M

os
t (

80
%

+)
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
 a

re
 c

om
pr

is
ed

 o
f s

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r p
er

m
an

en
t d

w
el

lin
g 

su
ch

 a
s 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

d 
an

d 
si

ng
le

-f
am

ily
 h

om
es

. 
Th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f f
ar

m
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
 (6

6%
) m

et
 m

in
im

um
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 w

hi
le

 5
0

un
its

(3
4%

) d
id

 n
ot

 m
ee

t 
th

os
e 

st
an

da
rd

s
an

d
re

qu
ire

d 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

ac
tio

n 
ra

ng
in

g 
fro

m
 m

in
or

 re
pa

irs
 (e

.g
., 

th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 s

m
ok

e 
de

te
ct

or
s)

 
to

 m
or

e 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

re
pa

irs
(e

.g
., 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 a

nd
 fo

un
da

tio
n)

.

Ke
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
: 

Th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 c

re
at

ed
 a

 fi
rs

t-
of

-it
s 

ki
nd

 d
at

as
et

of
 th

e 
14

5 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
in

 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 a
re

as
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 ty
pe

, c
on

di
tio

n,
 a

nd
 n

um
be

r o
f f

ar
m

w
or

ke
r r

es
id

en
ts

. 
Es

se
nt

ia
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y

co
nd

iti
on

s 
w

er
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 a
t 4

9
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
 s

er
vi

ng
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
84

fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 6

3
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
 w

ho
 d

id
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
af

e 
dr

in
ki

ng
 w

at
er

 a
t t

he
tim

e 
of

 
in

sp
ec

tio
n.

 
O

ne
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

t w
ith

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t u

ns
af

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

w
as

 y
el

lo
w

 ta
gg

ed
 a

nd
 s

ub
se

qu
en

tly
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

si
de

nc
e,

 w
ith

th
e 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
se

ho
ld

 re
lo

ca
te

d
to

an
ot

he
r c

om
pl

ia
nt

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

t.
Si

x 
un

re
gi

st
er

ed
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 h
ou

si
ng

 5
+ 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

 w
er

e 
di

sc
ov

er
ed

 a
nd

 re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r r
eg

is
tr

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
St

at
e’

s 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
, a

 m
an

da
to

ry
 p

ro
gr

am
 fo

r e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
to

 
fiv

e 
or

 m
or

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s.

 
D

ed
ic

at
ed

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

di
re

ct
ed

 b
y

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

w
ne

rs
 w

ith
le

ga
liz

at
io

n
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

ne
w

,c
om

pl
ia

nt
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

. 
Ba

se
d 

on
 it

s 
fin

di
ng

s,
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 re
co

m
m

en
ds

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f p

ot
en

tia
l l

oc
al

ac
tio

ns
th

at
 c

an
su

pp
or

t t
he

 
le

ga
liz

at
io

n,
 re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 p
er

m
itt

ed
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
, s

uc
h 

as
 c

re
at

in
g 

a 
C

oa
st

al
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
er

m
it 

ex
em

pt
io

n 
fo

r f
ar

m
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 p
as

si
ng

 a
 n

ew
 o

rd
in

an
ce

 to
 re

qu
ire

 s
m

al
l w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s
se

rv
in

g 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
to

 s
ub

m
it

to
re

gu
la

r w
at

er
 te

st
in

g.
 

3

I.
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
O

n 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
23

, 2
02

3,
 s

ev
en

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

 w
er

e
ki

lle
d,

an
d 

an
ot

he
r c

rit
ic

al
ly

 in
ju

re
d 

in
 a

 m
as

s 
sh

oo
tin

g 
ev

en
t a

t t
w

o 
fa

rm
s 

on
 th

e 
co

as
ts

id
e 

of
 S

an
 M

at
eo

 C
ou

nt
y.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f l

ife
 a

nd
 tr

au
m

a 
to

 th
e 

su
rv

iv
or

s,
 th

e 
ho

rr
ifi

c 
tr

ag
ed

y
br

ou
gh

t t
o 

lig
ht

 th
e 

su
bs

ta
nd

ar
d

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

un
sa

fe
liv

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
at

 th
e 

fa
rm

s
w

he
re

 th
e 

sh
oo

tin
gs

 o
cc

ur
re

d.
 T

he
 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
liv

in
g 

in
 il

le
ga

lly
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d
an

d
un

pe
rm

itt
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
ho

us
in

g 
th

at
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

of
fic

ia
ls

la
te

r
de

em
ed

 to
o

un
sa

fe
fo

r h
um

an
 o

cc
up

an
cy

.

At
 th

e
re

qu
es

t o
fD

is
tr

ic
t 3

Su
pe

rv
is

or
 R

ay
 M

ue
lle

r a
nd

 o
th

er
 C

ou
nt

y 
le

ad
er

s,
 m

ul
tip

le
 C

ou
nt

y 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 c

am
e 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 la

un
ch

 th
e 

Fa
rm

w
or

ke
r H

ou
si

ng
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

in
 th

e 
af

te
rm

at
h 

of
 th

e 
sh

oo
tin

g 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

sa
fe

liv
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

fo
r f

ar
m

w
or

ke
rs

 re
si

di
ng

 in
 e

m
pl

oy
er

-p
ro

vi
de

d 
ho

us
in

g.
 T

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
w

as
 a

 jo
in

t e
ffo

rt
 o

f S
an

 M
at

eo
 

C
ou

nt
y’

s 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
Se

rv
ic

es
, C

ou
nt

y 
At

to
rn

ey
’s

 O
ffi

ce
, a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e’

s 
O

ffi
ce

, a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 in

pu
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y’

s
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
/W

ei
gh

ts
 a

nd
 M

ea
su

re
s.

Th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 h

ad
 tw

o 
pr

im
ar

y 
go

al
s.

Fi
rs

t, 
th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 s
et

 o
ut

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
al

l f
ar

m
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts
 o

n 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l 
an

d 
ra

nc
h 

la
nd

s 
in

 th
e 

un
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 a

re
a,

 w
he

th
er

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 o

r u
np

er
m

itt
ed

 a
nd

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f t
he

 n
um

be
r o

f 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
 h

ou
se

d,
 a

s 
no

 s
uc

h 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
at

ab
as

e 
ex

is
te

d 
at

 th
e 

tim
e.

Se
co

nd
, t

hr
ou

gh
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
ef

fo
rt

s,
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 s
ou

gh
t t

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
ll 

su
ch

 h
ou

si
ng

 m
et

 m
in

im
um

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
st

an
da

rd
s.

In
 s

itu
at

io
ns

 w
he

re
in

sp
ec

to
rs

 fo
un

d 
th

at
es

se
nt

ia
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

st
an

da
rd

s 
w

er
e 

no
t m

et
, t

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e
no

tic
ed

 th
e 

op
er

at
or

s/
la

nd
ow

ne
rs

,p
ro

vi
de

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
al

l n
ec

es
sa

ry
 c

or
re

ct
io

ns
, a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fie
d

a 
tim

ef
ra

m
e 

w
ith

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
tio

ns
 h

ad
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.

Th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
’s

 d
at

a-
co

lle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

re
 n

ow
 c

om
pl

et
e,

 a
nd

 th
is

 re
po

rt
 p

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

an
d 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e’

s 
ef

fo
rt

s,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
a 

se
t o

f c
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
fo

r c
on

tin
ui

ng
 e

ffo
rt

s 
to

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

su
pp

ly
 o

f s
af

e,
 

qu
al

ity
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts
 o

n 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 ra
nc

h 
la

nd
s 

in
 u

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Sa

n 
M

at
eo

 C
ou

nt
y.

II.
O

ut
re

ac
h

to
 O

pe
ra

to
rs

an
d 

D
at

a 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n
Pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

, t
he

C
ou

nt
y

ge
ne

ra
lly

on
ly

 h
ad

 re
co

rd
s 

of
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 th
at

 w
as

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

w
ith

 p
ro

pe
r p

er
m

itt
in

g,
 w

as
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
St

at
e’

s 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
, o

r w
he

re
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
ha

d 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
ab

ou
t l

iv
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

As
 a

 p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

st
ep

, t
he

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e 

th
us

 h
ad

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
in

iti
al

 d
at

a 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
al

l f
ar

m
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

, w
he

th
er

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 o

r n
ot

,o
n 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l l

an
ds

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

co
un

ty
.

To
 c

om
pi

le
 a

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 li

st
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l o
pe

ra
tio

ns
an

d 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

, t
he

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e

st
ar

te
d 

co
nd

uc
tin

g
ou

tr
ea

ch
 in

 M
ar

ch
20

23
 to

 a
ll 

op
er

at
io

ns
 a

nd
/o

r p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
rs

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 o

r c
er

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
lo

ca
l a

nd
 s

ta
te

 
ag

en
ci

es
un

de
r a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l p
ro

gr
am

s 
an

d 
pe

rm
its

. O
pe

ra
to

rs
 re

ce
iv

ed
a 

le
tt

er
 a

nd
 s

ur
ve

y 
re

qu
es

tin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
nu

m
be

ro
f f

ar
m

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

, i
f a

ny
,a

nd
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f w

or
ke

rs
 h

ou
se

d
on

si
te

.T
he

 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

te
am

s
re

vi
ew

ed
,a

na
ly

ze
d,

 a
nd

 c
on

fir
m

ed
su

rv
ey

 re
sp

on
se

s 
an

d
co

nt
ac

te
d 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
w

ne
rs

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 to

 
ve

rif
y 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

sc
he

du
le

 c
on

se
ns

ua
lo

ns
ite

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
.

Th
e 

su
rv

ey
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

llo
w

ed
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

to
 b

ui
ld

 a
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
at

ab
as

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
e 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 

ra
nc

h 
op

er
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 a
re

a,
 re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
fw

he
th

er
 th

ey
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
r n

ot
. T

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

a 
to

ta
l o

f 1
24

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

un
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 a

re
a 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ty

. T
he

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 

th
os

e
op

er
at

io
ns

 is
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

1.
 N

ot
e 

th
at

w
hi

le
 m

os
t a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 ra

nc
h 

op
er

at
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 a
re

as
, s

om
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 c
iti

es
 w

he
re

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 a

nd
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

au
th

or
ity

. T
ho

se
op

er
at

io
ns

 w
er

e
no

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

sc
op

e 
of

 th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
’s

 w
or

k;
ho

w
ev

er
, 

th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 d

id
 s

ha
re

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t i
ts

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

m
et

ho
ds

 w
ith

 c
ity

 p
ar

tn
er

s.

4

Fi
gu

re
 1

. A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 S

ub
je

ct
 to

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n

III
.

In
sp

ec
tio

n
Pr

oc
es

s
Th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 c
on

du
ct

ed
on

si
te

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 a

t a
ll 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 ra

nc
h

op
er

at
io

ns
pr

ov
id

in
g 

em
pl

oy
ee

 h
ou

si
ng

.
In

sp
ec

tio
n

te
am

s 
w

er
e 

co
m

pr
is

ed
 o

f r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 fr
om

 C
od

e 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s
as

 w
el

l 
as

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
in

sp
ec

to
rs

 to
 c

on
du

ct
 o

ns
ite

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
.A

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
fro

m
 th

e 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ffa

irs
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
ed

 la
ng

ua
ge

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r o
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t, 
as

 n
ee

de
d.

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
of

 a
ll 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
on

 e
ac

h
pr

op
er

ty
 k

no
w

n 
or

 s
us

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e

us
ed

 to
 h

ou
se

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l s

in
gl

e-
fa

m
ily

 h
om

es
, m

ul
ti-

un
it 

bu
ild

in
gs

, m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

d/
m

ob
ile

 h
om

es
, a

nd
 re

cr
ea

tio
na

l v
eh

ic
le

s,
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
no

n-
tr

ad
iti

on
al

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l s

tr
uc

tu
re

s
lik

e 
co

nv
er

te
d 

ba
rn

s.
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
co

nf
irm

ed
 to

 b
e 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

la
nd

ow
ne

r o
r o

pe
ra

to
r w

er
e 

no
t g

en
er

al
ly

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

ab
se

nt
co

ns
en

t o
r o

th
er

 s
ite

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
co

nc
er

ns
.B

ef
or

e 
ea

ch
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
w

ne
r a

nd
/o

r o
pe

ra
to

r w
as

 in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f t

he
 s

co
pe

 a
nd

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

he
 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
po

si
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
te

am
.I

n 
th

e 
en

d,
 e

ve
ry

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 w

as
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

ns
en

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

r a
nd

/o
r o

pe
ra

to
r a

nd
 th

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 te

na
nt

s.

Th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
w

er
e

ba
se

d 
on

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

bs
er

ve
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
on

si
te

 v
is

it 
an

d 
fo

cu
se

d 
on

 e
ss

en
tia

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
st

an
da

rd
s

re
la

te
d 

to
:

Se
pt

ic
 s

ys
te

m
: a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 d

is
po

sa
l o

f s
ew

ag
e 

an
d 

w
as

te
w

at
er

W
at

er
 s

up
pl

y:
 a

cc
es

s 
to

po
ta

bl
e 

w
at

er
w

ith
in

 s
af

e 
dr

in
ki

ng
/q

ua
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
s

Eg
re

ss
/e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ex

its
: c

le
ar

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

ex
its

 fr
om

 li
vi

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
in

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 s

af
et

y:
 a

de
qu

at
e 

an
d 

sa
fe

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
as

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
vi

su
al

 in
sp

ec
tio

n
5

El
ec

tr
ic

al
 s

af
et

y:
 n

o 
ap

pa
re

nt
 h

az
ar

do
us

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 w

ith
el

ec
tr

ic
al

 p
an

el
, o

ut
le

ts
, w

iri
ng

,a
nd

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

, a
s 

ob
se

rv
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

vi
su

al
 in

sp
ec

tio
n

Pr
im

ar
y 

he
at

 s
ou

rc
e:

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 b

as
ic

 h
ea

tin
g 

(n
ot

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
po

rt
ab

le
 h

ea
te

rs
)

Sm
ok

e/
ca

rb
on

 m
on

ox
id

e 
de

te
ct

or
s:

 fu
nc

tio
na

l s
m

ok
e 

an
d 

ca
rb

on
 m

on
ox

id
e 

de
te

ct
or

s 
in

st
al

le
d 

w
he

re
 re

qu
ire

d
Ve

nt
ila

tio
n:

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 v
en

til
at

io
n 

(p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r g

as
 a

pp
lia

nc
es

) 

W
he

n 
th

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

te
am

id
en

tif
ie

d 
a 

ho
us

in
g 

un
it 

th
at

 d
id

 n
ot

 m
ee

t m
in

im
um

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

in
 th

es
e

ar
ea

s,
 th

e 
te

am
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

op
er

at
or

 w
rit

te
n 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

fin
di

ng
s 

an
d 

th
e 

co
rr

ec
tio

ns
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
a 

tim
el

in
e 

by
 w

hi
ch

 c
or

re
ct

io
ns

 h
ad

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e.

Th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

tim
el

in
e 

fo
r t

he
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

w
or

k 
va

rie
d 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 th
e 

ris
k

po
se

d 
by

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

an
d 

th
e

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
re

pa
ir,

 ra
ng

in
g 

fr
om

 im
m

ed
ia

te
(e

.g
., 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 s

m
ok

e 
de

te
ct

or
s)

 to
 u

p 
to

 9
0 

da
ys

or
 m

or
e

(e
.g

., 
m

ak
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

 c
ha

ng
es

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
eg

re
ss

).

Th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 a

im
ed

 to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 d

is
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f f
ar

m
w

or
ke

rs
 a

s 
m

uc
h 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

in
 re

co
gn

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n 
su

ch
 d

is
pl

ac
em

en
t w

ou
ld

 c
au

se
 to

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 th
ei

r f
am

ili
es

.A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, o
rd

er
s 

to
 v

ac
at

e 
ho

us
in

g 
un

its
 w

er
e 

on
ly

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

w
he

re
, i

n 
th

e 
ju

dg
m

en
t o

f i
ns

pe
ct

or
s,

th
e 

ris
ks

 to
 h

um
an

 li
fe

 w
er

e 
so

 g
re

at
 th

at
 n

o 
on

e 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 li
vi

ng
 in

 th
e 

un
its

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
un

sa
fe

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

re
m

ed
ie

d.
 W

he
n 

th
er

e 
w

as
 a

 ri
sk

 o
f s

uc
h 

di
sp

la
ce

m
en

t, 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
w

or
ke

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l C

ou
nt

y 
C

or
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ag
en

cy
to

 m
ak

e 
re

ad
y 

su
pp

or
ts

 fo
ra

ny
 d

is
pl

ac
ed

 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
.

To
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
di

sp
la

ce
m

en
t, 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

te
am

s
si

m
ila

rly
 d

id
 n

ot
 c

on
di

tio
n 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

on
 fu

ll 
le

ga
liz

at
io

n 
of

 u
np

er
m

itt
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts
 n

or
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
pu

rs
ue

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
ga

in
st

ow
ne

rs
 fo

r f
ai

lin
g 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
or

 
pr

ov
id

e 
pr

oo
f o

f a
pp

lic
ab

le
 p

er
m

its
, s

o 
lo

ng
 a

s 
an

y 
re

qu
ire

d 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

ac
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

H
ow

ev
er

, o
pe

ra
to

rs
 

w
er

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 to
ob

ta
in

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 p

er
m

its
 to

 le
ga

liz
e 

al
lu

ni
ts

 a
nd

 w
er

e
pr

ov
id

ed
 re

fe
rr

al
s 

to
C

ou
nt

y
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
Se

rv
ic

es
st

af
f a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
as

si
st

w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

itt
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s.

IV
.

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t

Th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 s

ou
gh

t t
o 

ke
ep

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f t

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e’
s 

ef
fo

rt
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
its

 w
or

k
in

 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 o
f p

ub
lic

 c
on

ce
rn

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f f
ar

m
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

co
nc

er
ns

 o
f b

ot
h 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

an
d 

op
er

at
or

s
ab

ou
t t

he
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 o
ns

ite
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

.I
n 

al
l, 

th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 h

os
te

d 
or

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 a

t
th

irt
ee

n 
co

m
m

un
ity

 m
ee

tin
gs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 m

ee
tin

gs
 in

 H
al

f M
oo

n 
Ba

y 
an

d 
Pe

sc
ad

er
o 

be
fo

re
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 b
eg

an
.O

ut
re

ac
h 

fo
r t

ho
se

 m
ee

tin
gs

 w
as

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
to

 re
ac

h 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
 li

vi
ng

 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 w

as
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 in
 E

ng
lis

h,
 S

pa
ni

sh
, a

nd
 C

hi
ne

se
.I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 c
re

at
ed

 a
 p

ub
lic

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

na
l 

w
eb

si
te

 w
ith

 fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 a

sk
ed

 q
ue

st
io

ns
.

As
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 b
eg

an
, t

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 u

pd
at

es
 to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

t c
om

m
un

ity
 m

ee
tin

gs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
to

 th
e 

Fa
rm

w
or

ke
r A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, o
ne

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nt

y’
s 

ne
w

es
t a

dv
is

or
y 

co
m

m
is

si
on

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

th
at

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

un
m

et
 n

ee
ds

 o
f f

ar
m

w
or

ke
rs

 in
 S

an
 M

at
eo

 C
ou

nt
y.

In
 th

e 
su

m
m

er
 o

f 2
02

3,
 a

fte
r r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 a
bo

ut
 c

on
ce

rn
 a

nd
 c

on
fu

si
on

 a
m

on
g 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l o

pe
ra

to
rs

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

, t
he

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e 

ho
st

ed
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 m

ee
tin

gs
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 ta

rg
et

ed
 to

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
. A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

in
pu

t r
ec

ei
ve

d 
du

rin
g 

th
os

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
, t

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
a 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
w

ne
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

sh
ee

t t
ha

t w
as

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 to
 e

ac
h 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
w

ne
r p

rio
r t

o 
ev

er
y 

in
sp

ec
tio

n.
 

In
 th

e 
su

m
m

er
 o

f 2
02

4,
 w

he
n 

m
os

t o
f t

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

, t
he

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e 

ho
st

ed
 a

nd
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 a
t 

an
ot

he
r s

er
ie

s 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 m

ee
tin

gs
, d

ur
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 b

ot
h 

pr
ov

id
ed

 u
pd

at
es

 a
bo

ut
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

fin
di

ng
s 

as
 

w
el

l a
s 

pr
es

en
te

d 
an

d 
so

ug
ht

 in
pu

t o
n 

po
te

nt
ia

lr
ef

or
m

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 s

up
po

rt
th

e 
le

ga
l r

en
ov

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
. S

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
, t

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

at
 m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f t
he

 
Pe

sc
ad

er
o 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 A

dv
is

or
y 

C
ou

nc
il,

 th
e 

Ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
lA

dv
is

or
y 

C
ou

nc
il,

 th
e 

Fa
rm

 B
ur

ea
u,

 th
e 

Fa
rm

w
or

ke
r A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, a
nd

tw
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l m
ee

tin
gs

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 ta
rg

et
in

g 
th

e 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r c
om

m
un

ity
.

V.
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Fi
nd

in
gs

Th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
’s

 o
ns

ite
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
th

e 
m

os
t c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
et

 o
f d

at
a 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ga
th

er
ed

 to
 d

at
e 

on
 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r, 

ty
pe

, a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
on

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

ds
.

A
.F

ar
m

w
or

ke
r H

ou
si

ng
 b

y 
th

e 
N

um
be

rs
Th

e
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 c
ou

nt
ed

 5
6

op
er

at
or

s 
(o

ut
 o

f 1
24

 to
ta

l a
ct

iv
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
)t

ha
t p

ro
vi

de
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 o
n 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l 

6

or
 ra

nc
h 

la
nd

s 
in

 u
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Sa
n 

M
at

eo
 C

ou
nt

y.
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
f e

ac
h 

of
 th

os
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d

14
5 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r 

ho
us

in
g 

un
its

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
by

 a
n 

es
tim

at
ed

35
6 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

. T
ab

le
 1

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 

by
 u

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
ar

ea
.

Ta
bl

e 
1.

 G
eo

gr
ap

hi
c 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 F
ar

m
w

or
ke

r H
ou

si
ng

 b
y 

R
eg

io
n

G
eo

gr
ap

hi
c 

R
eg

io
n

N
um

be
r o

f 
Fa

rm
w

or
ke

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 U

ni
ts

N
um

be
r o

f 
Fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs

M
id

co
as

t 
24

49

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

H
al

f M
oo

n 
Ba

y 
18

60

Sa
n 

G
re

go
rio

 
18

38

Pe
sc

ad
er

o 
73

17
1

O
th

er
12

38

To
ta

l
14

5
35

6

O
f t

he
 5

6 
op

er
at

io
ns

 th
at

pr
ov

id
e 

ho
us

in
g 

to
at

 le
as

t o
ne

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r,

22
op

er
at

io
ns

 h
ou

se
fiv

e 
or

 m
or

e 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
, a

nd
 

34
op

er
at

io
ns

 h
ou

se
 fo

ur
 o

r f
ew

er
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
(s

ee
 F

ig
ur

e 
2 

on
 n

ex
t p

ag
e)

. T
he

 n
um

be
r o

f f
ar

m
w

or
ke

rs
 w

ho
 li

ve
 o

n
si

te
is

 re
le

va
nt

 b
ec

au
se

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
ho

us
in

g 
fiv

e 
or

 m
or

e 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
 a

re
 re

gu
la

te
d 

un
de

r t
he

 S
ta

te
’s

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ct
, 

w
hi

ch
 g

ov
er

ns
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
st

an
da

rd
s,

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, a
nd

 u
se

 o
f p

riv
at

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 h

ou
si

ng
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 a

ss
ur

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

, s
af

et
y,

 a
nd

 g
en

er
al

 w
el

fa
re

of
 th

e 
te

na
nt

s.
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ct

, o
pe

ra
to

rs
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
nn

ua
l 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 b

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

Se
rv

ic
e’

s 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
. 

Th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
’s

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
, t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

si
x

op
er

at
io

ns
 th

at
 h

ou
se

 fi
ve

 o
r m

or
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
bu

t w
er

e 
no

t e
nr

ol
le

d 
in

 th
e 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 in
sp

ec
tio

n.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 h

av
in

g
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

y 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

co
rr

ec
tio

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

, t
ho

se
op

er
at

or
s 

w
er

e
re

fe
rr

ed
to

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

to
 le

ga
liz

e 
th

ei
r u

ni
ts

, a
pp

ly
 fo

r a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 h
ou

si
ng

pe
rm

it,
an

d 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 S

ta
te

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
be

in
g 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
an

nu
al

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y
in

sp
ec

tio
n.

Fi
gu

re
 2

. F
ar

m
w

or
ke

r O
cc

up
an

cy
 b

y 
Pr

op
er

ty

B
.F

ar
m

w
or

ke
r H

ou
si

ng
 b

y
Ty

pe
W

hi
le

 th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 in

sp
ec

te
d 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

t t
yp

es
, t

he
 v

as
t m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 1
45

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

w
er

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 b

e 
pe

rm
an

en
t d

w
el

lin
gs

lik
e

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

d/
m

ob
ile

ho
m

es
, s

in
gl

e-
fa

m
ily

 h
om

es
, m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 (e
.g

., 
du

pl
ex

, t
rip

le
x,

 e
tc

.),
 a

nd
 d

or
m

ito
rie

s.
Th

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

w
as

 c
om

pr
is

ed
 o

f o
th

er
ty

pe
s 

of
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
co

nv
er

te
d 

ba
rn

s,
 tr

av
el

 tr
ai

le
rs

 (n
on

-m
ot

or
iz

ed
), 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l v

eh
ic

le
s 

(R
Vs

). 
Fi

gu
re

 3
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

br
ea

kd
ow

n 
of

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
t t

yp
e

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

. 

1-
4 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

60
.7

%

5-
9 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
rs

17
.9

% 10
-1

4 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
7.

1%

15
-1

9 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
5.

4%
20

 -
24

 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
8.

9%

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 w

ith
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r
56

 to
ta

l o
pe

ra
tio

ns



7

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

, i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

te
am

s
al

so
 in

sp
ec

te
d 

32
 v

ac
an

t u
ni

ts
 a

nd
 1

2 
un

its
ho

us
in

g 
no

n-
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r t
en

an
ts

.D
at

a 
fo

r t
ho

se
un

its
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A.
 

Fi
gu

re
 3

. F
ar

m
w

or
ke

r H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 T

yp
e

(1
45

 T
ot

al
U

ni
ts

)

C
.C

or
re

ct
iv

e 
A

ct
io

ns
 b

y 
th

e 
N

um
be

rs
Th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

un
its

 fo
rc

om
pl

ia
nc

e
w

ith
 e

ss
en

tia
l l

ife
, h

ea
lth

, a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

st
an

da
rd

s,
as

 
de

sc
rib

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

III
, a

bo
ve

.O
f t

he
 1

45
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts
 in

sp
ec

te
d,

 6
5.

5%
 (9

5 
un

its
) m

et
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

’s
 

sa
fe

ty
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

,a
nd

 3
3.

8%
(4

9
un

its
)r

eq
ui

re
d 

co
rr

ec
tiv

e 
ac

tio
ns

 b
ut

 c
ou

ld
 re

m
ai

n 
oc

cu
pi

ed
. O

ne
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 
un

it
(0

.7
%

)r
eq

ui
re

d 
su

ch
 e

xt
en

si
ve

 c
or

re
ct

iv
e 

w
or

k 
th

at
 it

 w
as

 d
ee

m
ed

 im
m

in
en

tly
 d

an
ge

ro
us

an
d 

w
as

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

 
ye

llo
w

ta
gg

ed
, m

ea
ni

ng
 th

at
 re

si
de

nt
s 

co
ul

d 
no

t c
on

tin
ue

 to
 re

si
de

 th
er

e 
un

le
ss

 th
e 

da
ng

er
ou

s 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

w
er

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

Th
e 

op
er

at
or

 in
 th

at
 c

as
e 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
th

e
un

it
ra

th
er

 th
an

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
ac

tio
ns

bu
t r

el
oc

at
ed

th
e 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
se

ho
ld

 to
 a

no
th

er
, c

om
pl

ia
nt

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

t o
n 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

. 

Fi
gu

re
 4

. I
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

Fi
nd

in
gs

O
f t

he
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
 re

qu
iri

ng
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
ac

tio
n,

 th
e 

m
os

t f
re

qu
en

tly
 c

ite
d

is
su

es
 re

la
te

d
to

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y
(3

7
un

its
), 

la
ck

 o
f C

O
/s

m
ok

e 
de

te
ct

or
s 

(2
4

un
its

), 
se

pt
ic

 s
ys

te
m

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
(1

8
un

its
), 

an
d 

w
iri

ng
/e

le
ct

ric
al

co
nc

er
ns

(1
7

un
its

)(
no

te
 

th
at

 a
 u

ni
t o

f h
ou

si
ng

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
co

rr
ec

tio
ns

 in
 m

ul
tip

le
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s)
.F

ig
ur

e 
5

sh
ow

s 
th

e 
fre

qu
en

cy
 o

f a
ll 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
ca

te
go

rie
s.

1122233

11

17

40

63

0
10

20
30

40
50

60
70

O
th

er
: P

or
ta

bl
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
fic

e 
tr

ai
le

r

O
th

er
: Y

el
lo

w
 c

or
ru

ga
te

d 
m

et
al

 s
id

in
g 

w
ar

eh
ou

se

O
th

er
: S

tu
di

o 
un

it 
w

ith
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 c
om

m
un

al
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Yu
rt

D
or

m

Ba
rn

 o
r o

th
er

 s
tr

uc
tu

re

Re
cr

ea
tio

na
l v

eh
ic

le
/R

V 
(m

ot
or

iz
ed

)

Tr
av

el
 tr

ai
le

r (
no

n-
m

ot
or

iz
ed

)

M
ul

ti-
fa

m
ily

 d
w

el
lin

g 
(e

.g
., 

du
pl

ex
, t

rip
le

x,
 e

tc
.)

Si
ng

le
 fa

m
ily

 h
om

e

M
an

uf
ac

tu
re

d/
m

ob
ile

 h
om

e

N
um

be
r o

f h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts

8

Fi
gu

re
 5

. S
af

et
y 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
Fi

nd
in

gs
 b

y 
C

at
eg

or
y

W
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y

is
su

es
, i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 e
va

lu
at

in
g 

an
y 

pl
um

bi
ng

or
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n
is

su
es

 w
ith

th
e

w
at

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 

to
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
, t

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
al

so
 te

st
ed

 w
at

er
 s

am
pl

es
fo

r t
he

 p
re

se
nc

e 
of

 b
ac

te
ria

w
he

ne
ve

rt
he

 w
at

er
so

ur
ce

se
rv

in
g 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r u

ni
ts

w
as

 n
ot

 a
lre

ad
y 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
re

gu
la

r t
es

tin
g 

an
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
un

de
r a

n
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 w
at

er
 p

er
m

it.
Th

ro
ug

h 
su

ch
 te

st
in

g,
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 id
en

tif
ie

d
w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s 
on

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

se
rv

in
g 

an
 e

st
im

at
ed

35
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
 

th
at

 te
st

ed
 p

os
iti

ve
 fo

r c
ol

ifo
rm

 a
nd

/o
r E

. c
ol

ib
ac

te
ria

, w
hi

ch
 p

os
e 

a 
pr

im
ar

y 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 th

re
at

 to
 th

e 
w

at
er

 u
se

rs
. I

n 
th

os
e 

ca
se

s,
 in

sp
ec

to
rs

 re
qu

ire
d 

op
er

at
or

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 d
is

in
fe

ct
io

n,
 m

ak
e 

re
pa

irs
, o

r i
ns

ta
ll 

m
or

e 
pe

rm
an

en
t t

re
at

m
en

to
f 

th
e 

w
at

er
 to

 e
lim

in
at

e 
an

y 
on

go
in

g 
th

re
at

 fr
om

 b
ac

te
ria

 in
 th

e 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y.

 W
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, i

ns
pe

ct
or

s 
is

su
ed

 b
oi

l-
w

at
er

 n
ot

ic
es

 u
nt

il 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

or
 c

or
re

ct
io

n 
w

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

Re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 o
f t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s,
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

ac
tio

ns
 ra

ng
ed

 fr
om

 m
in

or
 to

 m
or

e 
ex

te
ns

iv
e.

 
Ex

am
pl

es
 o

f m
in

or
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
ac

tio
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 s

m
ok

e 
an

d 
ca

rb
on

 m
on

ox
id

e 
al

ar
m

s 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

op
er

 
ve

nt
in

g 
of

 a
pp

lia
nc

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 w

at
er

 h
ea

te
rs

 a
nd

 s
to

ve
s.

Ex
am

pl
es

 o
f m

or
e 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

ac
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
or

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 d

oo
rs

 o
r w

in
do

w
s 

in
 ro

om
s 

us
ed

 fo
r s

le
ep

in
g 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

eg
re

ss
, 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 re

pa
irs

, f
ou

nd
at

io
n 

re
pa

irs
, a

nd
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
or

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f h
ea

tin
g 

Th
ro

ug
h 

th
es

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
ef

fo
rt

s,
 th

e 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 e
ns

ur
ed

 th
at

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
rs

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 u

nd
er

to
ok

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
re

pa
irs

 fo
r e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
49

 fa
rm

w
or

ke
r u

ni
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
as

 re
qu

iri
ng

 c
or

re
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

n.
 

VI
.

C
on

cl
us

io
n 

an
d 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

Th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
’s

 w
or

k 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
t a

ll 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 o
n 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 ra

nc
h 

la
nd

s 
in

 u
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Sa
n 

M
at

eo
 C

ou
nt

y 
is

 th
e 

fir
st

 e
ffo

rt
 o

f i
ts

 k
in

d
at

 th
e

co
un

ty
 le

ve
l. 

Th
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

in
 th

is
 re

po
rt

 p
ai

nt
 th

e 
m

os
t 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nd
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

pi
ct

ur
e 

to
 d

at
e 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
, q

ua
nt

ity
,a

nd
 c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

on
 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l l

an
ds

.T
he

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e’

s 
go

al
s 

fr
om

 it
s 

in
ce

pt
io

n 
w

er
e

to
 n

ot
 o

nl
y 

en
su

re
 m

in
im

um
 h

ab
ita

bi
lit

y
co

nd
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

al
l f

ar
m

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

, b
ut

 a
ls

o 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

in
si

gh
t a

bo
ut

 th
e 

st
at

e 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
 th

at
 c

an
 h

el
p 

in
fo

rm
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 e
ffo

rt
s

to
su

pp
or

t t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f s
af

e
an

d
he

al
th

y
fa

rm
w

or
ke

rh
ou

si
ng

 in
 S

an
 M

at
eo

 C
ou

nt
y.

(F
or

 m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 o
th

er
 re

ce
nt

 e
ffo

rt
s 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
of

 S
an

 M
at

eo
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

un
m

et
 n

ee
ds

 o
f f

ar
m

w
or

ke
rs

, s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
B.

)

W
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
po

ss
ib

le
 fu

tu
re

 a
ct

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
al

on
g 

th
es

e 
lin

es
, t

he
Ta

ke
 F

or
ce

of
fe

rs
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

ba
se

d 
on

 it
s 

fin
di

ng
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
in

pu
t g

at
he

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

pu
bl

ic
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 m

ee
tin

gs
:

1.
In

cr
ea

se
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r s

af
e 

dr
in

ki
ng

 w
at

er
.

Al
th

ou
gh

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 s

ho
w

ed
 th

at
 m

os
t f

ar
m

w
or

ke
r u

ni
ts

 a
lre

ad
y 

co
m

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
 e

ss
en

tia
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y

st
an

da
rd

s
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

on
e 

ar
ea

 in
 w

hi
ch

ad
di

tio
na

l c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
co

ul
d 

be
 im

pa
ct

fu
l i

s 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
of

 w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
s,

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 th

os
e 

se
rv

in
g 

fe
w

er
 th

an
 fi

ve
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
no

t c
ur

re
nt

ly
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
or

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
 u

nd
er

 S
ta

te
 la

w
.T

he
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
re

co
m

m
en

ds
 e

xp
lo

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
 lo

ca
l o

rd
in

an
ce

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

m
in

im
um

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
st

an
da

rd
s,

an
 

an
nu

al
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

pe
rm

it,
an

d 
pe

rio
di

c 
sa

m
pl

in
g 

to
 c

on
fir

m
 m

in
im

um
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s
fo

r s
uc

h 
w

at
er

 
9

sy
st

em
s 

se
rv

in
g 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

. 

2.
Su

pp
or

t t
he

le
ga

liz
at

io
n

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

un
its

 a
nd

 le
ga

l c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 u
ni

ts
.

Th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 b

el
ie

ve
s 

th
at

 le
ga

liz
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
ex

is
tin

g 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
 (a

nd
le

ga
l c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
ne

w
un

its
)

is
 th

e
m

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
e

w
ay

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
ar

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
sa

fe
ly

, a
re

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 th
e 

du
ra

bi
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
pe

rm
an

en
t d

w
el

lin
gs

, a
nd

 a
re

 b
ui

lt 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 h
ea

lth
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
fo

r f
ar

m
w

or
ke

r
re

si
de

nt
s,

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, a

nd
 th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.
Th

e 
le

ga
l c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
of

 
ho

us
in

g 
of

 a
ny

 ty
pe

 in
 th

e 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 c
oa

st
si

de
 o

f S
an

 M
at

eo
 C

ou
nt

y,
 h

ow
ev

er
, m

us
t n

av
ig

at
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

le
ga

l, 
re

gu
la

to
ry

, a
nd

 g
eo

gr
ap

hi
c 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s 

th
at

 d
o 

no
t e

xi
st

 fo
r m

an
y 

ba
ys

id
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.W
hi

le
 m

an
y 

of
 th

e
le

ga
l a

nd
 re

gu
la

to
ry

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

ar
e 

go
ve

rn
ed

 b
y 

St
at

e 
la

w
 a

nd
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

ch
an

ge
d 

at
 th

e 
lo

ca
l l

ev
el

, t
he

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
po

te
nt

ia
lm

ea
su

re
s 

at
 th

e 
lo

ca
l l

ev
el

 th
at

 c
an

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
nd

 e
xp

ed
iti

ou
s 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

an
d/

or
 re

no
va

tio
n 

of
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
.

In
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, p
ot

en
tia

l l
eg

al
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

cl
ud

e:
(1

) r
ed

uc
in

g 
m

in
im

um
 s

iz
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r o

ns
ite

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 
tr

ea
tm

en
t s

ys
te

m
s

(O
W

TS
), 

su
ch

 a
s 

se
pt

ic
, t

ha
t w

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 a

 lo
w

er
 th

re
sh

ol
d 

fo
r d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

m
in

im
um

 
si

ze
 o

f t
he

 s
ys

te
m

 to
 m

or
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 d

em
an

d
pr

es
en

te
d 

by
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 
un

it;
 a

nd
 (2

)p
ur

su
in

g 
an

 a
m

en
dm

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l C

oa
st

al
 P

ro
gr

am
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

C
oa

st
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pe

rm
it 

ex
em

pt
io

n 
fo

r f
ar

m
w

or
ke

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 a

re
as

 th
at

 w
ill

 n
ot

 im
pa

ct
 c

oa
st

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s,

 a
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
oa

st
al

 A
ct

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 (e
.g

., 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
ha

bi
ta

t a
re

as
 a

nd
 th

ei
r b

uf
fe

rs
, 

no
t v

is
ib

le
 fr

om
 s

ce
ni

c 
ro

ad
s,

 a
nd

 n
ot

 o
n 

pr
im

e 
so

ils
 w

he
re

 fe
as

ib
le

). 

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
, p

ro
ce

ss
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 b
et

te
r a

ss
is

t p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
rs

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 w

ho
 s

ee
k 

to
 b

ui
ld

, r
en

ov
at

e 
or

 
re

pa
ir 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

 h
ou

si
ng

in
cl

ud
e

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ef

fo
rt

s 
al

re
ad

y 
un

de
r w

ay
: (

1)
 u

pd
at

es
 to

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y’

s 
on

e-
st

op
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

m
an

ua
l, 

th
e 

Fa
rm

 L
ab

or
 H

ou
si

ng
 G

ui
de

bo
ok

,t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

an
d 

cu
rr

en
t 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 p
er

m
it 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s,

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

ho
w

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
as

si
st

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

it 
pr

oc
es

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 o

f P
la

nn
in

g 
& 

Bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
Se

rv
ic

es
; a

nd
 (2

)t
he

 a
dd

iti
on

 o
fd

ed
ic

at
ed

 s
ta

ff 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 b

ot
h 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

H
ea

lth
Se

rv
ic

es
to

 a
ss

is
t p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

rs
 w

ith
th

e 
pe

rm
it 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

an
d 

O
W

TS
 e

va
lu

at
io

n,
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
re

vi
ew

s 
fo

r i
ns

ta
lla

tio
ns

, u
pg

ra
de

s,
 a

nd
 re

pa
irs

.

3.
Ex

pl
or

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

of
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

r u
ni

ts
.

To
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

in
an

ci
al

 o
bs

ta
cl

es
 to

 le
ga

l c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
or

 re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
un

its
 fo

r s
om

e 
op

er
at

or
s,

 th
e

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 re

co
m

m
en

ds
 e

xp
lo

rin
g 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
lr

ef
re

sh
 o

ft
he

 F
ar

m
w

or
ke

r H
ou

si
ng

 L
oa

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
op

er
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f H

ou
si

ng
.T

ha
t p

ro
gr

am
, w

hi
ch

to
 d

at
e 

ha
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 e
ig

ht
su

bs
id

iz
ed

 lo
an

s 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

d 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

e 
16

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
un

its
, h

as
 n

o 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 fu
nd

s 
fo

ra
dd

iti
on

al
 lo

an
s

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 
th

is
 re

po
rt

.

VI
I.

R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
 a

nd
 re

ha
bi

lit
at

e 
le

ga
l f

ar
m

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
,i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

up
da

te
d 

Fa
rm

 L
ab

or
 

H
ou

si
ng

 G
ui

de
bo

ok
,a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t a

ny
 n

ew
 m

ea
su

re
s

in
 th

is
 a

re
a 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

ad
op

te
d

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y,
 

vi
si

t t
he

 C
ou

nt
y’

s 
Fa

rm
 L

ab
or

 H
ou

si
ng

 P
er

m
it

w
eb

pa
ge

.

Th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

re
m

ai
ns

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

en
su

rin
g

sa
fe

 li
vi

ng
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 fo
r f

ar
m

w
or

ke
rs

 re
si

di
ng

 in
 e

m
pl

oy
er

-p
ro

vi
de

d 
ho

us
in

g
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r c
on

ce
rn

ed
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

w
ith

 re
po

rt
ab

le
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t u

ns
af

e 
ho

us
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

to
m

ak
e 

a 
re

po
rt

us
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
et

ho
ds

:

1.
To

 re
po

rt
 m

at
te

rs
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

un
sa

fe
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s,
 c

on
ta

ct
 th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 &

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
t (

65
0)

 3
63

-
78

21
. 

2.
To

 re
po

rt
 m

at
te

rs
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

he
al

th
, w

at
er

, a
nd

 s
an

ita
tio

n,
 c

on
ta

ct
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

at
 (6

50
) 3

63
-4

40
4 

an
d/

or
 F

ar
m

W
or

ke
rH

ou
si

ng
Su

pp
or

t@
sm

cg
ov

.o
rg

. 

In
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
m

on
th

s,
 th

e 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ffa

irs
 w

ill
 c

on
du

ct
 ta

rg
et

ed
ou

tr
ea

ch
 to

 th
e 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 h
ow

 to
 re

po
rt

 u
ns

af
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s.

10

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

.I
ns

pe
ct

io
n

D
at

a 
Th

is
 a

pp
en

di
x 

fe
at

ur
es

 d
at

a 
fo

r a
ll 

un
its

 in
sp

ec
te

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

no
n-

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r u

ni
ts

. T
he

 th
re

e 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

of
 o

cc
up

an
cy

fe
at

ur
ed

 in
cl

ud
e: “F

ar
m

w
or

ke
r h

ou
si

ng
” 

re
fe

rs
 to

 a
 h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
t w

ith
 o

ne
 o

r m
or

e 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s

“O
th

er
 te

na
nt

 u
ni

ts
” 

re
fe

rs
 to

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts
 w

ith
 te

na
nt

s
w

ho
 w

er
e 

no
ti

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
s

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
in

cl
ud

in
g

re
nt

er
s 

an
d 

gu
es

ts
“V

ac
an

t”
 re

fe
rs

 to
 h

ou
si

ng
 u

ni
ts

 th
at

 w
er

e 
va

ca
nt

 a
t t

im
e 

of
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

11

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t b
y 

O
cc

up
an

cy
 C

at
eg

or
y

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t
Fa

rm
w

or
ke

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 U

ni
ts

Va
ca

nt
 a

t T
im

e 
of

 In
sp

ec
tio

n

O
th

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

U
ni

ts
To

ta
l U

ni
ts

Pe
rc

en
t o

f 
To

ta
l U

ni
ts

C
or

re
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

ns
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, a
nd

 u
ni

t c
an

 re
m

ai
n 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
is

 ti
m

e
49

6
5

60
31

.7
%

N
o 

co
rr

ec
tiv

e 
ac

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d

95
10

6
11

1
58

.7
%

Ye
llo

w
 ta

g 
-u

ns
af

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

w
er

e 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 
re

qu
ire

d 
re

st
ric

te
d 

us
e 

of
 th

is
 u

ni
t

1
1

1
3

1.
6%

N
/A

 (N
ot

 p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r h

ab
ita

tio
n)

15
15

7.
9%

To
ta
l

14
5

32
12

18
9

10
0%

Ty
pe

 o
f C

or
re

ct
io

n 
N

ee
de

d 
by

 O
cc

up
an

cy
 C

at
eg

or
y 

Ty
pe

 o
f C

or
re

ct
io

n 
N

ee
de

d
Fa

rm
w

or
ke

r 
U

ni
ts

Va
ca

nt
 U

ni
t a

t 
Ti

m
e 

of
 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 

O
th

er
 T

en
an

t 
U

ni
ts

To
ta

l U
ni

ts

Se
pt

ic
 s

ys
te

m
18

4
3

25
W

at
er

 s
up

pl
y

37
3

3
43

W
iri

ng
/e

le
ct

ric
al

17
2

4
23

Eg
re

ss
/e

m
er

ge
nc

y e
xi

ts
8

1
0

9
St

ru
ct

ur
al

 s
af

et
y i

ss
ue

s
8

3
1

12

Pr
im

ar
y h

ea
t s

ou
rc

e
13

2
3

18
C

O
/s

m
ok

e 
de

te
ct

or
s

24
1

5
30

Ve
nt

ila
tio

n
12

1
2

15

12

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

. O
th

er
 In

iti
at

iv
es

 
I.

R
ec

en
t A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
St

on
e 

Pi
ne

 C
ov

e 
(8

80
 S

to
ne

 P
in

e)
, H

al
f M

oo
n 

Ba
y 

Th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 w
or

ki
ng

on
 a

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

al
le

d 
88

0 
St

on
e 

Pi
ne

 R
oa

d 
in

 H
al

f M
oo

n 
Ba

y,
 a

n 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

d 
ho

m
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f H
al

f M
oo

n 
Ba

y 
of

fe
rin

g 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 4

7 
fa

rm
w

or
ke

r h
ou

se
ho

ld
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

os
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 d

is
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

m
as

s 
sh

oo
tin

g 
of

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
23

. T
he

 C
ou

nt
y 

is
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ho
m

eo
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l w

or
ke

rs
 m

ak
in

g 
up

 to
 8

0%
 o

f t
he

 
ar

ea
 m

ed
ia

n 
in

co
m

e 
an

d 
w

ill
 ta

rg
et

 e
xt

re
m

el
y 

lo
w

-in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 a

nd
 d

is
pl

ac
ed

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

fro
m

 d
ila

pi
da

te
d 

ho
us

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 T

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

tic
ip

at
es

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 to

 b
eg

in
 in

 S
pr

in
g 

20
25

.F
or

 m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 p

le
as

e 
vi

si
t t

he
 

C
ity

 o
f H

al
f M

oo
n 

Ba
y’

s 
St

on
e 

Pi
ne

 C
ov

e 
–

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
w

eb
pa

ge
. 

C
yp

re
ss

 P
oi

nt
, M

os
s 

Be
ac

h 

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
er

 M
id

Pe
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

71
-u

ni
t a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 in

 M
os

s 
Be

ac
h.

 T
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 c
on

si
st

 o
f 1

6 
on

e-
be

dr
oo

m
, 3

7 
tw

o-
be

dr
oo

m
, a

nd
 1

8 
th

re
e-

be
dr

oo
m

 h
om

es
 th

at
 a

re
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 to

 s
er

ve
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
21

0 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 A
ll 

un
its

, a
pa

rt
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

an
ag

er
’s

 u
ni

t, 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

nt
ed

 to
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
th

at
 e

ar
n 

le
ss

 th
an

 
60

%
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
m

ed
ia

n 
in

co
m

e,
 o

f w
hi

ch
 1

8 
ar

e 
re

se
rv

ed
 fo

r l
ow

-in
co

m
e 

fa
rm

w
or

ke
r h

ou
se

ho
ld

s.
 F

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 
pl

ea
se

 v
is

it 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
of

 S
an

 M
at

eo
’s

 C
yp

re
ss

 P
oi

nt
 A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ro
je

ct
w

eb
pa

ge
. 

55
5 

Ke
lly

 A
ve

nu
e,

 H
al

f M
oo

n 
Ba

y 

In
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 A

LA
S 

(A
yu

da
nd

o 
La

tin
os

 a
 S

on
ar

)a
nd

 w
ith

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
up

po
rt

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y,

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pe

r M
er

cy
 H

ou
si

ng
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 (M
H

C
) i

s 
sl

at
ed

 to
 b

ui
ld

 4
0 

ap
ar

tm
en

ts
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r s
en

io
r f

ar
m

w
or

ke
rs

 
on

 a
 p

ar
ce

l o
w

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f H
al

f M
oo

n 
Ba

y.
 T

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 h

om
e 

of
 th

e 
Fa

rm
w

or
ke

r R
es

ou
rc

e
C

en
te

r, 
a 

ne
w

 c
om

m
un

ity
 c

en
te

r o
pe

ra
te

d 
by

 A
LA

S.
 F

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 p
le

as
e 

vi
si

t t
he

 C
ity

 o
f H

al
f M

oo
n 

Ba
y’

s 
55

5 
Ke

lly
 A

ve
nu

e 
–

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
w

eb
pa

ge
. 

II.
Pe

sc
ad

er
o 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
ite

 A
na

ly
si

s 
Th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
is

 c
on

du
ct

in
g 

an
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 s

ite
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Pe

sc
ad

er
o 

ar
ea

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

.T
hi

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 in

-d
ep

th
 s

tu
dy

 o
f s

ite
s 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

vi
ab

le
 fo

r t
hi

s 
pu

rp
os

e,
 a

nd
id

en
tif

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l b

ar
rie

rs
 to

 s
uc

h 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
os

ed
 b

y 
ex

is
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f f
ar

m
w

or
ke

r h
ou

si
ng

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
.

III
.

O
ffi

ce
 o

f L
ab

or
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t (
O

LS
E)

In
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
3,

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 S
up

er
vi

so
rs

 v
ot

ed
 u

na
ni

m
ou

sl
y 

to
 la

un
ch

 a
n 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f L
ab

or
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
(O

LS
E)

 w
ith

 s
pe

ci
fic

 a
tt

en
tio

n 
to

 lo
w

-in
co

m
e 

w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 w
or

ke
rs

 fr
om

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
. T

he
 g

oa
l i

s 
to

 in
fo

rm
 

w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

ab
ou

t l
ab

or
 ri

gh
ts

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
dh

er
en

ce
 to

 w
ag

e 
pe

r h
ou

r l
aw

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t. 
Th

e 
O

LS
E 

w
ill

 a
im

 to
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
w

or
ke

r p
ro

te
ct

io
ns

 b
y 

ha
vi

ng
 in

-h
ou

se
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 re
in

fo
rc

e 
re

gi
on

al
, 

st
at

e,
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l r
eg

ul
at

or
y 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l s

tr
at

eg
ie

s.
 T

he
 O

LS
E 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

ut
ili

zi
ng

 a
 p

ha
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
ne

ed
ed

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.



1. Let staff know that your are now on the PRC Board and want to 
identify that as a possible conflict of interest. 

 
2. Updates: Pacifica has received reports of Section 8 Housing 
evictions, some which have led to homelessness. There are multiple 
resources trying to assist the tenants since their story was shared..  
 
Pacifica is not the only community reporting evictions, mostly for 
failure to pay. 
  Currently, eviction data comes from the number who go to 
eviction court, but this is an undercount since may evicted tenants do 
not go to court.  
 The CORE agents might have data on the number of clients 
seeking their assistance due to evictions, and it would be a helpful 
data point for the community and our electeds. 
 According to Matthew Desmond, nationally the greatest reason 
for homelessness among single women with children is eviction. 
 
 A recent Measure K Report stated $8.5 million earmarked for rental 
assistance were not disbursed. 
  SMCO Legal Aid said that would have prevented many 
evictions. 
  
Ask: 
1. Could this Board receive monthly data on evictions: 
 - the numbers that come to eviction court 
 - the numbers of  CORE agency clients who consult to prevent 
eviction or report they are being evicted? 
 
2. Could we get a report on Measure K funding disbursement to better 
understand why rental assistance funds went unallocated? 
 
 



 
Tab 2 

Program Budget and 
Financial Report 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
DATE:  April 10, 2025 
 
TO: Co-Applicant Board, San Mateo County Health Care for the Homeless/Farmworker 

Health (HCH/FH) Program 
 
FROM: Jim Beaumont 

Director, HCH/FH Program 
 
SUBJECT: HCH/FH PROGRAM BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT 
 
 
Preliminary expenditure data for March shows a total of only $94,370, however this includes only one 
(1) paid invoice for contracted services.  Much of this is the result of payment processing often being 
focused for the end of the month and the HCH/FH need for getting reports to provide to the Board in a 
timely manner.  This is true for the entire year-to-date in lacking data on the payments of invoices for 
our service contracts and MOUs.  What we can say is that the second largest component of HCH/FH 
expenditures – staff salaries & benefits – is being expended as expected and is on target so far for 
the year. 
 
As we get through the entire first quarter and perform the drawdown of funds for reimbursement, we 
will begin to have a much better idea of where we stand with respect to our planned budgeted 
expenditures.  The Board can expect more detailed reporting and projections on spending as we get 
to the May Board meeting.  For now, there is nothing apparent that would be of concern in our rates 
of expenditure.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment:   

 GY 2024 Summary Grant Expenditure Report Through 03/31/25 



GRANT YEAR 2025

March $$
Details for budget estimates Budgeted To Date Projection for

[SF-424] (03/31/25) end of year
EXPENDITURES

Salaries
Director, Program Coordinator
Management Analyst ,Medical Director
     new position, misc. OT, other, etc.

725,000 53,454 163,562 720,000 750,000         

Benefits
Director, Program Coordinator
Management Analyst ,Medical Director
     new position, misc. OT, other, etc.

225,000 16,981 51,851 220,000 235,000

Travel
National Conferences (2500*8) 20,000 1,976 10,000 12,000           
Regional Conferences (1000*5) 5,000 250 3,000 1,500             
Local Travel 500 500 250                
Taxis 500 500 250                
Van & vehicle usage 1,000 1,000 1,000             

27,000 2,226 15,000 15,000           

Supplies
Office Supplies, misc. 10,000 341 5,000 2,500             
Small Funding Requests

10,000 341 5,000 2,500             

Contractual
2022 Contracts 56,067 56,067
2022 MOUs 0
Current 2023 MOUs 1,000,000 23,400 23,400 900,000 1,000,000
Current 2023 contracts 950,000 875,000 900,000

---unallocated---/other contracts

1,950,000 79,467 1,831,067 1,900,000

Other
Consultants/grant writer 40,000 35,000 10,000           
IT/Telcom 55,000 535 16,201 55,000 60,000           
New Automation 0 -                     
Memberships 5,000 5,000 5,000             
Training 10,000 5,000 2,500             
Misc 5,000 1,955 5,000 5,000             

115,000 18,156 105,000 82,500

TOTAL 3,052,000 94,370 315,603 2,896,067 2,985,000

GRANT REVENUE

Available Base Grant 2,858,632 2,858,632 2,858,632 2,858,632     
Prior Year Unexpended to Carryover (verified) 333,590 333,590 333,590
Other 296,155         carryover
HCH/FH PROGRAM TOTAL 3,192,222 3,192,222 3,192,222 3,154,787

BALANCE 140,222 Available 2,876,619 296,155 169,787
Current Estimate Projected

based on est. grant
of $2,858,632

Non-Grant Expenditures

Salary Overage 10,000 250 750 11,000 12,000
Health Coverage 123,000 9,721 29,485 135,000 143,000
base grant prep 0 0
food 6,000 789 6,500 7,500
incentives/gift cards 1,000 1,500 1,500

140,000 31,024 154,000 164,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,192,000 104,341 346,627 3,050,067 NEXT YEAR 3,149,000

Projected for GY 2026



 
Tab 3 

HCH/FH Director’s 
Report 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  
 
 

 
DATE:  April 10, 2025 
 
TO: Co-Applicant Board, San Mateo County Health Care for the 

Homeless/Farmworker Health (HCH/FH) Program 
 
FROM: Jim Beaumont, Director, HCH/FH Program 

 
SUBJECT: DIRECTOR’S REPORT & PROGRAM CALENDAR 
 
Program activity update since the March 13, 2025, Co-Applicant Board meeting. 
 
Program continues to work through the grant conditions that resulted from our January 
Operational Site Visit (OSV).  Some have already been submitted and indicated as acceptable 
by HRSA staff supporting our effort. We expect to complete submission by the June 1, 2025 
deadline. 
 
HCH/FH’s cooperative effort with the County Library system to have blood pressure cuffs 
available for check-out at all of the county libraries has fully implemented.  An outstanding 
project led by our Clinical Services Coordinator, Alejandra Alvarado.  Congratulations Alejandra. 
 
Preparations for our 2025 Needs Assessment, a HRSA requirement, is well underway, with 
literature review activity and prospective vendor assessment.  The Board will be hearing more 
about, and provided the opportunity to participate in the Needs Assessment in future meetings. 
 
The Behavioral Health Services Expansion grant is moving along with our first data expected to 
be reported during April.  Additionally, Program is actively working with SMMC Ambulatory 
Services and Coastside Clinic on the Expanded Hours grant looking to increase hours of 
operation on coastside, particularly implementing a Sunday clinic. 
 
Program submitted timely responses to HRSA questions concerning the UDS report, and we 
have been informed that the report is now considered complete. 
 
Overall, the first quarter of 2025 have been extraordinarily busy for HCH/FH with the OSV 
layered on top of the expected UDS Reporting, plus implementation of two (2) grants.  As 
Director, I am quite pleased with the staff’s ability to respond under difficult time constraints to 
achieve excellent results. 
 
 
 
Seven Day Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHED: 

 Program Calendar 



C
ou

nt
y 

of
 S

an
 M

at
eo

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

fo
r t

he
 H

om
el

es
s 

&
 F

ar
m

w
or

ke
rH

ea
lth

 (H
C

H
/F

H
) P

ro
gr

am
20

25
 C

o-
A

pp
lic

an
t B

oa
rd

 C
al

en
da

r
Bo

ar
d 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 in
-p

er
so

n 
on

 th
e 

2nd
Th

ur
sd

ay
 o

f t
he

 M
on

th
 1

0a
m

-1
2p

m

M
O

N
TH

A
R

EA

Pr
og

ra
m

m
at

ic
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

/C
on

fe
re

nc
es

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

(H
ea

lth
, D

EI
, H

ol
id

ay
s 

an
d 

M
is

c.
)

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

-
H

C
H

/F
H

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
(1

/9
)

-
H

R
SA

 O
pe

ra
tio

na
l S

ite
 V

is
it 

(O
SV

)
(1

/1
4-

1/
16

)
-

O
SV

 S
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
(1

/1
5)

G
la

uc
om

a 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
C

er
vi

ca
l C

an
ce

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 M

on
th

N
at

io
na

l H
um

an
 T

ra
ffi

ck
in

g 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

M
on

th
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l H

ol
oc

au
st

 
R

em
em

br
an

ce
 D

ay
 (1

/2
7)

N
ew

 Y
ea

r’s
 D

ay
(1

/1
)

M
ar

tin
 L

ut
he

r K
in

g 
D

ay
 

(1
/2

0)
In

au
gu

ra
tio

n 
D

ay
 (1

/2
0)

Lu
na

r N
ew

 Y
ea

r (
1/

29
)

FE
B

R
U

A
R

Y
-

H
C

H
/F

H
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

(2
/1

3)
-

Fi
na

nc
e 

Su
bc

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g 

(2
/1

3)
-

U
D

S 
su

bm
is

si
on

-R
ev

ie
w

N
at

io
na

l A
llia

nc
e 

to
 E

nd
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

W
in

te
r C

on
fe

re
nc

e:
 In

no
va

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
So

lu
tio

ns
 fo

r E
nd

in
g 

U
ns

he
lte

re
d 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s.
 (L

os
 A

ng
el

es
, C

A 
–

Fe
b 

26
-2

8)

N
at

io
na

l C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

D
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

Am
er

ic
an

 H
ea

rt 
M

on
th

N
at

io
na

l C
an

ce
r P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
M

on
th

N
at

io
na

l W
ea

r R
ed

 D
ay

 (2
/7

)
Bl

ac
k 

H
is

to
ry

 M
on

th
 

W
or

ld
 D

ay
 o

f S
oc

ia
l J

us
tic

e 

Li
nc

ol
n’

s 
Bi

rth
da

y
(2

/1
2)

Va
le

nt
in

e’
s 

D
ay

(2
/1

4)
Pr

es
id

en
t’s

 D
ay

 (2
/1

7)

M
A

R
C

H
-

H
C

H
/F

H
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

(3
/1

3)
-

Q
I/Q

A 
Su

bc
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
(3

/1
3)

-
U

pd
at

ed
 S

lid
in

g 
Fe

e
D

is
co

un
tS

ca
le

 
(S

FD
S)

 -
Ap

pr
ov

e

C
ol

or
ec

ta
l C

an
ce

r A
w

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

l D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
M

on
th

N
at

io
na

l D
oc

to
rs

 D
ay

 (3
/3

0)

Le
nt

 B
eg

in
s 

(3
/5

)
D

ay
lig

ht
 S

av
in

g 
Ti

m
e 

St
ar

ts
 (3

/9
)

St
. P

at
ric

k’
s 

D
ay

 (3
/1

7)

A
PR

IL
-

H
C

H
/F

H
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

(4
/1

0)
-

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 S

ub
co

m
m

itt
ee

 
M

ee
tin

g 
(4

/1
0)

-
SM

M
C

 A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it

-A
pp

ro
ve

20
24

 M
id

w
es

t S
tre

am
 F

or
um

-
Ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l W
or

ke
r C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
(T

BD
)

Al
co

ho
l A

w
ar

en
es

s 
M

on
th

Se
xu

al
 A

ss
au

lt 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
C

ou
ns

el
in

g 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
N

at
io

na
l M

in
or

ity
 H

ea
lth

 M
on

th
D

ef
ea

t D
ia

be
te

s 
M

on
th

N
at

io
na

l P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 W
ee

k 
(4

/7
-

4/
11

)

Le
nt

 E
nd

s 
(4

/1
9)

Pa
ss

ov
er

 (4
/1

3 
–

4/
20

)
Ea

st
er

 S
un

da
y 

(4
/2

0)

M
A

Y
-

H
C

H
/F

H
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

(5
/8

)
-

Fi
na

nc
e 

Su
bc

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g 

(5
/8

)

N
at

io
na

l H
ea

lth
ca

re
 fo

r t
he

 H
om

el
es

s 
C

on
fe

re
nc

e.
 (B

al
tim

or
e,

 M
D

–
M

ay
 1

2-
15

)
N

R
H

A 
H

ea
lth

 E
qu

ity
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e.
 

(A
tla

nt
a,

 G
A

–
M

ay
 1

9-
20

)
N

H
R

A 
An

nu
al

 R
ur

al
 H

ea
lth

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

(A
tla

nt
a,

 G
A 

–
M

ay
 2

0-
23

)

Am
er

ic
an

 S
tro

ke
 A

w
ar

en
es

s 
M

on
th

H
ig

h 
Bl

oo
d 

Pr
es

su
re

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
M

on
th

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 A
w

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
N

at
io

na
l T

ra
um

a 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
 

As
ia

n 
Pa

ci
fic

 A
m

er
ic

an
 H

er
ita

ge
 

M
on

th
 

M
ot

he
r’s

 D
ay

 (5
/1

1)
M

em
or

ia
l D

ay
 (5

/2
6)

JU
N

E
-

H
C

H
/F

H
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

(6
/1

2)
-

Q
I/Q

A 
Su

bc
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
(6

/1
2)

-
Se

rv
ic

es
/L

oc
at

io
ns

 F
or

m
 5

A/
5B

 –
Ap

pr
ov

e

N
C

FH
 A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l W

or
ke

r H
ea

lth
 

Sy
m

po
si

um
 (T

BD
 –

M
ay

/J
un

e2
02

5)
PT

SD
 A

w
ar

en
es

s 
M

on
th

C
an

ce
r S

ur
vi

vo
r’s

 M
on

th
LG

BT
Q

IA
+ 

Pr
id

e 
M

on
th

 

Fa
th

er
’s

 D
ay

 (6
/1

5)
Ju

ne
te

en
th

 (6
/1

9)



JU
LY

-
H

C
H

/F
H

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
(7

/1
0)

-
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 S
ub

co
m

m
itt

ee
 

M
ee

tin
g 

(7
/1

0)
-

Bu
dg

et
 R

en
ew

al
 (P

ro
gr

am
) A

pp
ro

ve

N
at

io
na

l M
in

or
ity

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
 

H
ea

lth
y 

Vi
si

on
 M

on
th

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 D
ay

 (7
/4

)

A
U

G
U

ST
-

H
C

H
/F

H
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

(8
/1

4)
-

Fi
na

nc
e 

Su
bc

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g 

(8
/1

4)

N
at

io
na

l B
re

as
tfe

ed
in

g 
M

on
th

N
at

io
na

l I
m

m
un

iz
at

io
n 

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
M

on
th

N
at

io
na

l H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r W
ee

k 
(8

/1
0 

–
8/

16
)

SE
PT

EM
B

ER
-

H
C

H
/F

H
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

(9
/1

1)
-

Q
I/Q

A 
Su

bc
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
(9

/1
1)

-
Pr

og
ra

m
 D

ire
ct

or
 A

nn
ua

l R
ev

ie
w

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
tre

et
 M

ed
ic

in
e 

Sy
m

po
si

um
. (

H
ilo

, H
aw

ai
’I 

–
Se

pt
 9

 –
12

)
H

ea
lth

y 
Ag

in
g 

M
on

th
N

at
io

na
l S

ui
ci

de
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
M

on
th

G
yn

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 C

an
ce

r A
w

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
 

H
is

pa
ni

c 
H

er
ita

ge
 M

on
th

 (S
ta

rts
 

9/
15

)

La
bo

r D
ay

 (9
/1

)

O
C

TO
B

ER
-

H
C

H
/F

H
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

(1
0/

9)
-

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 S

ub
co

m
m

itt
ee

 
M

ee
tin

g 
(1

0/
9)

-
An

nu
al

 C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

St
at

em
en

td
ue

-
Bo

ar
d 

C
ha

ir/
Vi

ce
 C

ha
ir 

N
om

in
at

io
ns

Br
ea

st
 C

an
ce

r A
w

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
D

ep
re

ss
io

n 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

M
on

th
D

om
es

tic
 V

io
le

nc
e 

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
M

on
th

H
ea

lth
 L

ite
ra

cy
 M

on
th

 
Pa

tie
nt

-C
en

te
re

d 
C

ar
e 

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
M

on
th

C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 D
ay

 (1
0/

6)

In
di

ge
no

us
 P

eo
pl

es
’ 

D
ay

/C
ol

um
bu

s 
D

ay
 

(1
0/

13
)

H
al

lo
w

ee
n 

(1
0/

31
)

N
O

VE
M

B
ER

-
H

C
H

/F
H

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
(1

1/
13

)
-

Fi
na

nc
e 

Su
bc

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g 

(1
1/

13
)

-
Bo

ar
d 

C
ha

ir/
Vi

ce
 C

ha
ir 

El
ec

tio
ns

Ea
st

 C
oa

st
 M

ig
ra

nt
 S

tre
am

-A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
W

or
ke

r C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

Fo
ru

m
 (T

BA
)

Am
er

ic
an

 D
ia

be
te

s 
M

on
th

N
at

io
na

l S
ex

ua
l H

ea
lth

 M
on

th
 

N
at

iv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 H
er

ita
ge

 D
ay

 
(1

1/
28

)

D
ay

lig
ht

 S
av

in
gs

 T
im

e 
En

ds
 (1

1/
2)

Ve
te

ra
n’

s 
D

ay
 (1

1/
11

)
Th

an
ks

gi
vi

ng
 (1

1/
27

)

D
EC

EM
B

ER
-

H
C

H
/F

H
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

(1
2/

11
)

-
Q

I/Q
A 

Su
bc

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g 

(1
2/

11
)

In
st

itu
te

 fo
r H

ea
lth

ca
re

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

(IH
I) 

Fo
ru

m
 (T

BD
)

Se
as

on
al

 A
ffe

ct
iv

e 
D

is
or

de
r 

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
M

on
th

C
hr

is
tm

as
 E

ve
 (1

2/
24

)
C

hr
is

tm
as

 D
ay

 (1
2/

25
)

N
ew

 Y
ea

r’s
 E

ve
 (1

2/
31

)

BO
AR

D 
AN

N
UA

L C
AL

EN
DA

R
Pr

oj
ec

t
Ti

m
ef

ra
m

e
HR

SA
 O

pe
ra

tio
na

l S
ite

 V
isi

t (
OS

V)
Ja

nu
ar

y 
14

 -
16

SM
M

C 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
-R

ev
ie

w
Ap

ril
/M

ay
UD

S 
Su

bm
iss

io
n 

-R
ev

ie
w

Sp
rin

g
Sl

id
in

g 
Fe

e 
Di

sc
ou

nt
 S

ca
le

 (S
FD

S)
Sp

rin
g

Se
rv

ice
s/

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 F
or

m
 5

A/
5B

 –
Ap

pr
ov

e
Ju

ne
/J

ul
y

Bu
dg

et
 R

en
ew

al
 -

Ap
pr

ov
e

Ju
ly

/A
ug

us
t/

Se
pt

em
be

r(
Pr

og
ra

m
)–

De
ce

m
be

r/
Ja

nu
ar

y 
(G

ra
nt

)
An

nu
al

 C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t S

ta
te

m
en

t
Oc

to
be

r(
an

d 
du

rin
g 

ne
w

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
)

Pr
og

ra
m

 D
ire

ct
or

 A
nn

ua
l R

ev
ie

w
W

in
te

r
An

nu
al

 Q
I/Q

A 
Pl

an
 –

Ap
pr

ov
e

W
in

te
r

Bo
ar

d 
Ch

ai
r/

Vi
ce

 C
ha

ir 
El

ec
tio

ns
No

ve
m

be
r/

De
ce

m
be

r



 
Tab 4  

QI/QA Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 



DATE: April 10th, 2025

TO: Co-Applicant Board, San Mateo County Health Care for the Homeless/Farmworker 
Health (HCH/FH) Program

FROM: Frank Trinh, HCH/FH Medical Director
Alejandra Alvarado, HCH/FH Clinical Services Coordinator

SUBJECT:  QI/QA COMMITTEE REPORT

2025-2026 Needs Assessment
o HCH/FH continues to plan its upcoming Needs Assessment (NA), throughout the remainder of 

this year. HCH/FH is currently working on evaluating consultants to select the appropriate 

consultant who understands our scope of work and who can fulfill our needs within the given 

timeline and budget. 

Library Expansion Project
o HCH/FH has been working with the San Mateo County Library (SMCL) systems to promote the 

collaboration where blood pressure cuffs were provided by HCH/FH to all library locations in the 

county. SMCL has posted about this project onto their website blog and newsletter. SMCL also 

plans to work with local news outlets to promote this to newspapers and local media. HCH/FH is 

working with SMMC and County Health Communications to assure the medical center stays in 

the loop with all marketing efforts. HCH/FH also plans to promote this project through the 

SMMC Heartbeat Newsletter and external partners. 

Operational Site Visit Non-Compliant Follow-Up Items
o HCH/FH is following up with HRSA representatives to assure that all non-compliant items 

remains in compliance with the HRSA requirements. HCH/FH is following up with the 

appropriate SMMC staff to assure that items are submitted by the end of our 90- day CRO

period.



 
Tab 5 

Request to Approve HCHFH 
Grants Management Policy:   

Reviewing and Approving the 
Updated SMMC Drawdown 

Procedure  



DATE: April 10, 2025

TO: Co-Applicant Board, San Mateo County Health Care for the Homeless/Farmworker Health 
(HCH/FH) Program

FROM: Jim Beaumont, Director 
HCH/FH Program

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR THE BOARD TO APPROVE SMMC’S DRAWDOWN POLICY

Under the Bylaws, the Board is responsible for approving policies and procedures for Program operations. 

As a finding from our Operational Site Visit (OSV) in January 2025, Program was found non-compliant is the 
specifics of the Drawdown policy and procedures.  Drawdown policy and procedures prescribe the process and 
manner with which Program federal reimbursement is requested.  The OSV finding specified the need to 
include the federal citation for appropriateness of funding utilization.  This request is to address that finding.

The Board is here presented with a draft update to the Drawdown Policy and Procedures that bring them into 
compliance with the federal requirements.  This item functions as an attachment to the Board’s approved Grant 
Management Policy (see enclosed for both)

This request is for the Board to review and approve the Drawdown Policy and Procedures as presented.
Approval of this item requires a majority vote of the Board members present.

Attachments:
HCH/FH Grants Management Policy – Expenditure Control
Drawdown Policy and Procedures



1 

SAN MATEO COUNTY HEALTHCARE FOR THE HOMELESS/FARMWORKER HEALTH PROGRAM 

Program Policy 

Policy Area:  Grant Management Policy Effective Date: October 11, 2018 
Subject: Restrictions on Expenditures 
(including Federal Legislative Mandates) 

Amended: August 17, 2021 
Reviewed: July 13, 2023 

Approved by: HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board 

I. Rationale or background to policy:

It is the responsibility of the HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board to establish operational policies as 
necessary for the appropriate operation of the HCH/FH Program.  As the Co-Applicant Board 
has the sole authority for the expenditure of grant funds received from the Health Services and 
Resources Administration (HRSA), and such funding may carry specific expenditure or other 
restrictions, it is incumbent on the Co-Applicant Board to establish policies for the expenditure 
of HRSA grant funds. 

The purpose of this policy is to clarify the requirements mandated by the FY 2018 Consolidated 
Appropriations Act 2018 (Public Law 115-141). Signed into law on March 23, 2018.  The intent 
of this policy is to describe HCH/FH policy on the following statutory provisions that limit the 
use of funds from HRSA grant funding. 

In no manner are any of the following restrictions meant to restrict health center patient access 
to health care services including syringe exchange and harm reduction services or abortion or 
related services. The HCH program may continue to provide access to said services within 
applicable laws, however, this HRSA-mandated Policy solely serves to describe specific areas in 
which expenditures of federal grant funds are prohibited by federal law. 

II. Policy Statement:

The scope and coverage of this policy applies to all services within the HRSA-approved Scope of 
Project of the HCH/FH Program whether delivered directly by San Mateo County employees or 
under contract, Memorandum of Understanding or subrecipient agreements. 

1. Salary Limitation

No HRSA health center grant funds shall be used to pay the salary of an individual,
through a grant or other extramural mechanism, at a rate in excess of federal Executive
Level II.

2. Gun Control



2 

No HRSA health center grant funds may be used, in whole or in part, to advocate or 
promote gun control. 

3. Anti-Lobbying

No HRSA health center grant funds shall be used, other than for normal and recognized
executive legislative relationships, for publicity or propaganda purposes, for the
preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic
communication, radio, television, or video presentation designed to support or defeat
the enactment of legislation before the Congress or any State or local legislature or
legislative body, except in presentation to the Congress or any State or local legislature
itself, or designed to support or defeat any proposed or pending regulation,
administrative action, or order issued by the executive branch of any State or local
government, except in presentation to the executive branch of any State or local
government itself.

No HRSA health center grant funds shall be used to pay the salary or expenses of any
grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any activity
designed to influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation,
administrative action, or Executive order proposed or pending before the Congress or any
State government, State legislature or local legislature or legislative body, other than for
normal and recognized executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or
officer of a State, local or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes
within the executive branch of that government

The above prohibitions shall include any activity to advocate or promote any proposed,
pending, or future Federal, State or local tax increase, or any proposed, pending, or
future requirement or restriction on any legal consumer product, including its sale or
marketing, including but not limited to the advocacy or promotion of gun control. No
federal grant funds shall be used to pay the salary or expenses of any grant or contract
recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any activity designed to influence
the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, administrative action, or
Executive order proposed or pending before the Congress or any State government, State
legislature or local legislature or legislative body, other than for normal and recognized
executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer of a State, local
or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes within the executive
branch of that government.

4. Acknowledgment of Federal Funding

When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations and
other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal
money, the Alameda County HCH program shall clearly state – (1) the percentage of the



3 

total costs of the program or project which will be financed with Federal money; (2) the 
dollar amount of Federal funds for the project or program; and (3) percentage and dollar 
amount of the total costs of the project or program that will be financed by non- 
governmental sources." 

5. Restriction on Abortions

No HRSA health center grant funds shall be expended for any abortion. No HRSA health
center grant funds shall be expended for health benefits coverage that includes coverage
of abortion. The term ‘‘health benefits coverage’’ means the package of services covered
by a managed care provider or organization pursuant to a contract or other
arrangement.”

6. Exceptions to Restriction on Abortions

The limitations established in the preceding section shall not apply to an abortion –

(1) if the pregnancy is the result of an act of rape or incest when the program has received
signed documentation from a law enforcement agency or public health service stating:

(a) That the person upon whom the medical procedure was performed was reported
to have been the victim of an incident of rape or incest;
(b) The date on which the incident occurred;
(c) The date on which the report was made, which must have been within 60 days
of the date on which the incident occurred;
(d) The name and address of the victim and the name and address of the person
making the report (if different from the victim); and
(e) That the report included the signature of the person who reported the incident.
Federal financial participation is also available in expenditures for abortions for
victims of rape or incest under the circumstances described in § 50.304 without
regard to the requirements of the preceding sentence; or

(2) in the case when a physician has found, and so certified in writing to the program or
project, that on the basis of his/her professional judgment, the life of the mother would
be endangered if the fetus were carried to term. The certification must contain the
name and address of the patient.

Nothing in the preceding section shall be construed as prohibiting the expenditure by a 
State, locality, entity, or private person of State, local, or private funds (other than a 
State’s or locality’s contribution of Medicaid matching funds). Nothing in the preceding 
section shall be construed as restricting the ability of any managed care provider from 
offering abortion coverage or the ability of a State or locality to contract separately with 
such a provider for such coverage with State funds (other than a State’s or locality’s 
contribution of Medicaid matching funds). 



4 

The San Mateo County Health Care for the Homeless/Farmworker Health Program shall 
not subject any institutional or individual health care entity to discrimination on the basis 
that the health care entity does not provide, pay for, provide coverage of, or refer for 
abortions. The term ‘‘health care entity’’ includes an individual physician or other health 
care professional, a hospital, a provider-sponsored organization, a health maintenance 
organization, a health insurance plan, or any other kind of health care facility, 
organization, or plan. 

7. Ban on Funding of Human Embryo Research

No HRSA health center grant funds may be used for – (1) the creation of a human embryo
or embryos for research purposes; or (2) research in which a human embryo or embryos
are destroyed, discarded, or knowingly subjected to risk of injury or death greater than
that allowed for research on fetuses in utero under 45 CFR 46.204(b) and section 498(b) of
the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. 289g(b)).

For purposes of this section, the term ‘‘human embryo or embryos’’ includes any
organism, not protected as a human subject under 45 CFR 46 as of the date of the
enactment of this Act, that is derived by fertilization, parthenogenesis, cloning, or any
other means from one or more human gametes or human diploid cells.

8. Limitation on Use of Funds for Promotion of Legalization of Controlled Substances

No HRSA health center grant funds may be used for any activity that promotes the
legalization of any drug or other substance included in schedule I of the schedules of
controlled substances established under section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act
except for normal and recognized executive-congressional communications.  This
limitation shall not apply when there is significant medical evidence of a therapeutic
advantage to the use of such drug or other substance or that federally sponsored clinical
trials are being conducted to determine therapeutic advantage.

9. Restriction on Purchase of Sterile Needles

No HRSA health center grant funds shall be used to purchase sterile needles or
syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug: Provided, That such
limitation does not apply to the use of funds for elements of a program other than
making such purchases if the relevant State or local health department, in
consultation with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, determines that
the State or local jurisdiction, as applicable, is experiencing, or is at risk for, a
significant increase in hepatitis infections or an HIV outbreak due to injection drug
use, and such program is operating in accordance with State and local law.

10. Restriction of Pornography on Computer Networks

No HRSA health center grant funds may be used to maintain or establish a computer
network unless such network blocks the viewing, downloading, and exchanging of



5 

pornography.  This limitation shall not limit the use of funds necessary for any federal, 
state, tribal, or local law enforcement agency or any other entity carrying out criminal 
investigations, prosecution, or adjudication activities. 

11. Restrictions on FundingACORN

No HRSA health center grant funds may be provided to the Association of Community
Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN), or any of its affiliates, subsidiaries, allied
organizations, or successors.

12. Confidentiality Agreements

The San Mateo County HCH/FH Program shall not require its employees or contractors
seeking to report fraud, waste, or abuse to sign internal confidentiality agreements or
statements prohibiting or otherwise restricting such employees or contractors from
lawfully reporting such waste, fraud, or abuse to a designated investigative or law
enforcement representative of a Federal department or agency authorized to receive
such information. This limitation shall not contravene requirements applicable to
Standard Form 312, Form 4414, or any other form issued by a Federal department or
agency governing the nondisclosure of classified information

13. The HCH/FH program shall ensure that all expenditures using federal award funds are
allowable in accordance with the terms and conditions of the federal award, including
those that limit the use of federal award funds, and with the federal cost principles in
45 CFR Part 75 Subpart E.

III. Procedures:

The HCH/FH Program staff shall ensure that no grant funds are expended in divergence to this 
policy.  

Any modification to the legislative mandate policies and procedures will require review and 
approval of the HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board.

The HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board shall review this Grant Management Policy at least annually to 
ensure that it is fully compliant with HRSA and all other federal requirements for grant 
expenditures.

Approved          _____________         _ 

________________________________ ______________________________ 
Board Chair  Program Director

_________________________________
PrPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP ogram Director



San Mateo Medical Center 

HRSA Grant Quarterly Drawdown Procedure 

Identify Expenses 

1. Generate the OFAS  Report for the quarter for Health Care for Homeless ORG  68120

2. Use subaccounts ranging from 4000-9900 which covers salaries & all other expenses.

3. Only expenses actually incurred and paid are reimbursed.

Internal Controls to ensure Accuracy of submission 

Ensure county purchasing policies and procedures are in place for all purchases.

Review the memorandum of understanding and contract for all AP payments.

Ensure that 
.  Request supporting documentation

.

Question and investigate any unusual expenses. Contact Grant Administrator for further
clarification.

Food and gift cards expenses   are not to be included for reimbursement, except when
allowable.

Ensure all expenses have proper supporting documentation and approvals.

Calculate the proposed drawdown amount after making adjustments for unallowable
expenses.

Submit the calculations to Financial Service Manager (FSM) for review.

Once reviewed by FSM, submit the proposed worksheet to Grant Administrator for review &
approval.

Once reviewed and approved by the Grant Administrator, process the drawdown by logging on
to Payment Management System.

Upon completion, send a copy of Federal Cash Transaction Report and the drawdown to Grant
Administrator.

Provide a copy of the drawdown to Cashiers office, so they can monitor and inform you when
wire is received in our bank account.



16. When wire is received, Cashier’s office will record it into account 00502-0282-MC028 (Intergov
receivable –Federal) .This account is specifically designed to track HRSA Grant.

17. At the end of the grant period, reconcile the OFAS General ledger to claims submitted and
received.

Note: 
HRSA Grant runs Calendar Year. Drawdown is processed every quarter.  
Keep all the worksheets and drawdown documentations for Single Audit. 

Go to PMS home page: http://www.dpm.psc.gov/ 
Click on Payment Management System 
Under "DPM Secure Systems Login Links", click on 'Payment Management System'. 
Enter username and password.  



1  

SAN MATEO COUNTY HEALTHCARE FOR THE HOMELESS/FARMWORKER HEALTH PROGRAM 

Program Policy 
 

Policy Area: Grant Management Policy Effective Date: October 11, 2018 
Subject: Restrictions on Expenditures 
(including Federal Legislative Mandates) 

Amended: August 17, 2021 
Reviewed: April 10, 2025 

Approved by: HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board 

I. Rationale or background to policy: 

It is the responsibility of the HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board to establish operational policies as 
necessary for the appropriate operation of the HCH/FH Program. As the Co-Applicant Board 
has the sole authority for the expenditure of grant funds received from the Health Services and 
Resources Administration (HRSA), and such funding may carry specific expenditure or other 
restrictions, it is incumbent on the Co-Applicant Board to establish policies for the expenditure 
of HRSA grant funds. 

 
The purpose of this policy is to clarify the requirements mandated by the FY 2018 Consolidated 
Appropriations Act 2018 (Public Law 115-141). Signed into law on March 23, 2018. The intent 
of this policy is to describe HCH/FH policy on the following statutory provisions that limit the 
use of funds from HRSA grant funding. 

In no manner are any of the following restrictions meant to restrict health center patient access 
to health care services including syringe exchange and harm reduction services or abortion or 
related services. The HCH program may continue to provide access to said services within 
applicable laws, however, this HRSA-mandated Policy solely serves to describe specific areas in 
which expenditures of federal grant funds are prohibited by federal law. 

II. Policy Statement: 
 
The scope and coverage of this policy applies to all services within the HRSA-approved Scope of 
Project of the HCH/FH Program whether delivered directly by San Mateo County employees or 
under contract, Memorandum of Understanding or subrecipient agreements. 

1. Salary Limitation 

No HRSA health center grant funds shall be used to pay the salary of an individual, 
through a grant or other extramural mechanism, at a rate in excess of federal Executive 
Level II. 

2. Gun Control 



2  

No HRSA health center grant funds may be used, in whole or in part, to advocate or 
promote gun control. 

3. Anti-Lobbying 

No HRSA health center grant funds shall be used, other than for normal and recognized 
executive legislative relationships, for publicity or propaganda purposes, for the 
preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic 
communication, radio, television, or video presentation designed to support or defeat 
the enactment of legislation before the Congress or any State or local legislature or 
legislative body, except in presentation to the Congress or any State or local legislature 
itself, or designed to support or defeat any proposed or pending regulation, 
administrative action, or order issued by the executive branch of any State or local 
government, except in presentation to the executive branch of any State or local 
government itself. 

 
No HRSA health center grant funds shall be used to pay the salary or expenses of any 
grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any activity 
designed to influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, 
administrative action, or Executive order proposed or pending before the Congress or any 
State government, State legislature or local legislature or legislative body, other than for 
normal and recognized executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or 
officer of a State, local or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes 
within the executive branch of that government 

 
The above prohibitions shall include any activity to advocate or promote any proposed, 
pending, or future Federal, State or local tax increase, or any proposed, pending, or 
future requirement or restriction on any legal consumer product, including its sale or 
marketing, including but not limited to the advocacy or promotion of gun control. No 
federal grant funds shall be used to pay the salary or expenses of any grant or contract 
recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any activity designed to influence 
the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, administrative action, or 
Executive order proposed or pending before the Congress or any State government, State 
legislature or local legislature or legislative body, other than for normal and recognized 
executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer of a State, local 
or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes within the executive 
branch of that government. 

4. Acknowledgment of Federal Funding 

When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations and 
other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal 
money, the Alameda County HCH program shall clearly state – (1) the percentage of the 



3  

total costs of the program or project which will be financed with Federal money; (2) the 
dollar amount of Federal funds for the project or program; and (3) percentage and dollar 
amount of the total costs of the project or program that will be financed by non- 
governmental sources." 

5. Restriction on Abortions 

No HRSA health center grant funds shall be expended for any abortion. No HRSA health 
center grant funds shall be expended for health benefits coverage that includes coverage 
of abortion. The term ‘‘health benefits coverage’’ means the package of services covered 
by a managed care provider or organization pursuant to a contract or other 
arrangement.” 

6. Exceptions to Restriction on Abortions 

The limitations established in the preceding section shall not apply to an abortion – 

(1) if the pregnancy is the result of an act of rape or incest when the program has received 
signed documentation from a law enforcement agency or public health service stating: 

(a) That the person upon whom the medical procedure was performed was reported 
to have been the victim of an incident of rape or incest; 
(b) The date on which the incident occurred; 
(c) The date on which the report was made, which must have been within 60 days 
of the date on which the incident occurred; 
(d) The name and address of the victim and the name and address of the person 
making the report (if different from the victim); and 
(e) That the report included the signature of the person who reported the incident. 
Federal financial participation is also available in expenditures for abortions for 
victims of rape or incest under the circumstances described in § 50.304 without 
regard to the requirements of the preceding sentence; or 

(2) in the case when a physician has found, and so certified in writing to the program or 
project, that on the basis of his/her professional judgment, the life of the mother would 
be endangered if the fetus were carried to term. The certification must contain the 
name and address of the patient. 

 
Nothing in the preceding section shall be construed as prohibiting the expenditure by a 
State, locality, entity, or private person of State, local, or private funds (other than a 
State’s or locality’s contribution of Medicaid matching funds). Nothing in the preceding 
section shall be construed as restricting the ability of any managed care provider from 
offering abortion coverage or the ability of a State or locality to contract separately with 
such a provider for such coverage with State funds (other than a State’s or locality’s 
contribution of Medicaid matching funds). 



4  

The San Mateo County Health Care for the Homeless/Farmworker Health Program shall 
not subject any institutional or individual health care entity to discrimination on the basis 
that the health care entity does not provide, pay for, provide coverage of, or refer for 
abortions. The term ‘‘health care entity’’ includes an individual physician or other health 
care professional, a hospital, a provider-sponsored organization, a health maintenance 
organization, a health insurance plan, or any other kind of health care facility, 
organization, or plan. 

7. Ban on Funding of HumanEmbryo Research 

No HRSA health center grant funds may be used for – (1) the creation of a human embryo 
or embryos for research purposes; or (2) research in which a human embryo or embryos 
are destroyed, discarded, or knowingly subjected to risk of injury or death greater than 
that allowed for research on fetuses in utero under 45 CFR 46.204(b) and section 498(b) of 
the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. 289g(b)). 

For purposes of this section, the term ‘‘human embryo or embryos’’ includes any 
organism, not protected as a human subject under 45 CFR 46 as of the date of the 
enactment of this Act, that is derived by fertilization, parthenogenesis, cloning, or any 
other means from one or more human gametes or human diploid cells. 

8. Limitation on Use of Funds for Promotion of Legalization of Controlled Substances 

No HRSA health center grant funds may be used for any activity that promotes the 
legalization of any drug or other substance included in schedule I of the schedules of 
controlled substances established under section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act 
except for normal and recognized executive-congressional communications. This 
limitation shall not apply when there is significant medical evidence of a therapeutic 
advantage to the use of such drug or other substance or that federally sponsored clinical 
trials are being conducted to determine therapeutic advantage. 

9. Restriction on Purchase of SterileNeedles 

No HRSA health center grant funds shall be used to purchase sterile needles or 
syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug: Provided, That such 
limitation does not apply to the use of funds for elements of a program other than 
making such purchases if the relevant State or local health department, in 
consultation with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, determines that 
the State or local jurisdiction, as applicable, is experiencing, or is at risk for, a 
significant increase in hepatitis infections or an HIV outbreak due to injection drug 
use, and such program is operating in accordance with State and local law. 

10. Restriction of Pornography on Computer Networks 

No HRSA health center grant funds may be used to maintain or establish a computer 
network unless such network blocks the viewing, downloading, and exchanging of 



5  

 
Program Director 

pornography. This limitation shall not limit the use of funds necessary for any federal, 
state, tribal, or local law enforcement agency or any other entity carrying out criminal 
investigations, prosecution, or adjudication activities. 

11. Restrictions on Funding ACORN 

No HRSA health center grant funds may be provided to the Association of Community 
Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN), or any of its affiliates, subsidiaries, allied 
organizations, or successors. 

12. Confidentiality Agreements 

The San Mateo County HCH/FH Program shall not require its employees or contractors 
seeking to report fraud, waste, or abuse to sign internal confidentiality agreements or 
statements prohibiting or otherwise restricting such employees or contractors from 
lawfully reporting such waste, fraud, or abuse to a designated investigative or law 
enforcement representative of a Federal department or agency authorized to receive 
such information. This limitation shall not contravene requirements applicable to 
Standard Form 312, Form 4414, or any other form issued by a Federal department or 
agency governing the nondisclosure of classified information 

13. The HCH/FH program shall ensure that all expenditures using federal award funds are 
allowable in accordance with the terms and conditions of the federal award, including 
those that limit the use of federal award funds, and with the federal cost principles in 
45 CFR Part 75 Subpart E. 

III. Procedures: 

The HCH/FH Program staff shall ensure that no grant funds are expended in divergence to this 
policy. 

 
Any modification to the legislative mandate policies and procedures will require review and 
approval of the HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board. 

The HCH/FH Co-Applicant Board shall review this Grant Management Policy at least annually to 
ensure that it is fully compliant with HRSA and all other federal requirements for grant 
expenditures. 

 
 

 

Approved 
4/10/2025 

 _ 
 
 

  

Board Chair 



San Mateo Medical Center 

HRSA Grant Quarterly Drawdown Procedure 

Identify Expenses 

1. Generate the OFAS  Report for the quarter for Health Care for Homeless ORG  68120

2. Use subaccounts ranging from 4000-9900 which covers salaries & all other expenses.

3. Only expenses actually incurred and paid are reimbursed.

Internal Controls to ensure Accuracy of submission 

Ensure county purchasing policies and procedures are in place for all purchases.

Review the memorandum of understanding and contract for all AP payments.

Ensure that 
.  Request supporting documentation

.

Question and investigate any unusual expenses. Contact Grant Administrator for further
clarification.

Food and gift cards expenses   are not to be included for reimbursement, except when
allowable.

Ensure all expenses have proper supporting documentation and approvals.

Calculate the proposed drawdown amount after making adjustments for unallowable
expenses.

Submit the calculations to Financial Service Manager (FSM) for review.

Once reviewed by FSM, submit the proposed worksheet to Grant Administrator for review &
approval.

Once reviewed and approved by the Grant Administrator, process the drawdown by logging on
to Payment Management System.

Upon completion, send a copy of Federal Cash Transaction Report and the drawdown to Grant
Administrator.

Provide a copy of the drawdown to Cashiers office, so they can monitor and inform you when
wire is received in our bank account.



16. When wire is received, Cashier’s office will record it into account 00502-0282-MC028 (Intergov
receivable –Federal) .This account is specifically designed to track HRSA Grant.

17. At the end of the grant period, reconcile the OFAS General ledger to claims submitted and
received.

Note: 
HRSA Grant runs Calendar Year. Drawdown is processed every quarter.  
Keep all the worksheets and drawdown documentations for Single Audit. 

Go to PMS home page: http://www.dpm.psc.gov/ 
Click on Payment Management System 
Under "DPM Secure Systems Login Links", click on 'Payment Management System'. 
Enter username and password.  


